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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

Dear Stakeholders
It is my pleasure to introduce the 2016 Annual Report and Financial Statements.

As usual, the Annual Report presents a comprehensive review on the past year. Of necessity some of that review deals with
the dispute with our financier, which | am pleased to remind you, was formally resolved at the General Meeting in March
2016. That resolution has allowed the focus within the Company to return to operations and value creation.

| commend to you the report on performance at Hera and the improvements which have already been achieved. The second
half of the 2016 financial year was an outstanding turnaround which validates the confidence we have in the Hera mine.

A new management team, under new CEOQ/MD Jim Simpson, continues to take shape. Jim comes to his role with a clear
vision to grow Aurelia for the benefit of our shareholders and he will have the support of a refreshed Board of directors in
doing so. As the new management team at Hera settles to its tasks | am confident that results will continue to improve.

Founding CEO and former MD Rimas Kairaitis resigned in August — Rimas has been an outstanding and respected leader with
whom | enjoyed working for more than 10 years.

Mark Milazzo resigned late in the year after four years on the Board. Mark provided valued guidance and was a steady hand in
difficult times. On behalf of the Board | thank Rimas and Mark for their contributions and wish them well in the future.

| consider that it is important for shareholders that the process of Board refreshment, already underway, is completed as soon
as possible. Consistent with that view, | will not be seeking re-election at the coming AGM.

The Board is conducting a formal search process to recruit a new independent director, who will also be invited to be chair of
the Company. | hope other appointments will follow to ensure an appropriate balance on the Board, as independent
leadership is vital for the protection of all shareholders’ interests.

| wish Aurelia and its shareholders great success in the years to come.

Yours sincerely
(L /o =
J - _

Anthony Wehby
Non-Executive Chairman
24 October 2016
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REVIEW AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The financial year delivered a maiden profit of $10.9 million, marked by a strong turnaround in financial
performance in the second half of the year, driven by consistent operating improvements in the Hera Mine and
favourable commodity pricing.

A first half loss of $8.622 million was followed by a second half profit of $19.566 million. The second half
profit included a $10.203 million gain from extinguishment of debt. Net operating cash flow for the period was
$23.365 million.

For the year, the Hera Mine produced 46,882 ounces of gold and 25,406 tonnes of lead-zinc concentrates from
the processing of 308,118 tonnes of ore.

Payable metal recoveries improved through the year, reaching 83.9% recovery for gold, 93% for lead and
92.5% for zinc.

The Hera orebody performed strongly for the year, delivering a gold grade averaging 150% above estimates.
This gold grade reconciliation was addressed in an updated Mineral Resource and Ore Reserves estimated
released in June 2016.

The Company'’s operations were dominated by a dispute with its principal lenders Glencore, which commenced
in July 2015 and was settled in November 2015. The key terms of the settlement agreement include:

e Alllegal disputes with Glencore settled

e All existing debt repayments deferred for at least two years

e Atwo year interest free period and a two year suspension of debt repayment across all facilities

e Glencore to provide additional funding of a net $21.5 million to support the business through additional
loans and credit support

e Aurelia maintains conversion rights to convert up to $77 million of the facilities at the end of the two year
deferral period

The settlement agreement completed on 31 March 2016, following shareholder approval of the agreement
terms on 18 March 2016.

The settlement terms have provided a favourable structure for the Company to continue to pursue operating
improvements in the Hera operation and cash generation for future growth and debt reduction.

The Hera Mine was performing strongly at year end, however significant opportunities for improvement
remain, including:

e  Furtherimprovement in gold recovery,

e Increased plant throughput ;

e Increased base metal output and

e  Further reduction of process operating costs.

Aurelia also continues to investigate the expansion opportunities for Hera, with a particular focus on removing

the apparent process plant constraints when processing higher lead+zinc ore types. In concert with the mill
expansion, near mine exploration will be targeted to extend mine life.

4 AURELIA METALS LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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HERA-NYMAGEE PROJECT

The Hera-Nymagee Project represents Aurelia Metals’ (AMI) flagship Project and consists of the Hera gold-
base metal deposit (AMI 100%) and the Nymagee copper deposit (AMI 95%), and is located approximately
100km south-east of Cobar, hosted in the Cobar Basin rocks of central NSW. The Cobar Basin also hosts the
major mineral deposits at CSA (Cu-Ag), The Peak (Cu-Au) and Endeavor (Cu-Pb-Zn-Ag).

Company activities for the period were dominated by gold, lead, zinc and silver production from the Hera Mine.

HERA MINE

The operational performance of the Hera Mine for the 12 months to June 2016 was defined by continuous
improvement through the year, and strong financial performance in the second half.

The performance of the Hera processing plant remained the dominant focus of the business, with progressive
improvements including:

e Improvement in gold recovery from 72.% to 83.9%
e A number of capital improvements including the installation of additional grinding capacity
e Strong lead and zinc recoveries for the year, being 91% and 90.8% respectively

The Hera Mine operations were also marked by variable gold grade performance of the Hera ore body against
estimates, with reconciled gold grades averaging 150% higher than the block model grades for the financial
year. The Hera Ore Reserves and Mineral Resources were updated in June 2016.

The Company has maintained a focus of cost reduction through the year highlighted by a re-tender of the
underground mining contract, realising mining cost reductions in excess of 20%.

At the close of the year the Hera Mine remained strongly cashflow positive, however a number of issues
remained the operational focus at year end, including:

e  Further improvement in gravity gold, and total gold recovery

e  Further reduction in operating costs, and
e Adetailed study of expansion options

AURELIA METALS LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Production physicals for the year are summarised in the table below:

Aurelia Metals Limited Quarterly
Production
Sep Qtr Dec Qtr Mar Qtr Jun Qtr FY16
Units FY16 FY16 FY16 FY16
Ore Mined t 75,280 74,946 81,087 75,927 307,240
Ore Mined Grade - Gold g/t 5.16 5.33 6.62 6.96 6.03
Ore Mined Grade - Silver g/t 13.0 14.6 12.4 16.0 14.0
Ore Mined Grade - Lead 2.75% 2.70% 2.15% 3.06% 2.66%
Ore Mined Grade - Zinc 2.49% 2.71% 1.65% 3.31% 2.52%
Ore Processed t 78,229 71,703 83,522 74,665 308,118
Ore Processed Grade - Gold g/t 5.03 5.50 6.51 6.95 6.01
Ore Processed Grade - Silver g/t 14.39 14.32 12.69 15.84 14.27
Ore Processed Grade - Lead 2.97% 2.65% 2.22% 3.04% 2.71%
Ore Processed Grade - Zinc 2.79% 2.64% 1.80% 3.17% 2.58%
Recovery - Gold 72.7% 74.6% 81.2% 83.9% 78.2%
Recovery - Silver 79.9% 89.3% 85.2% 85.1% 84.8%
Recovery - Lead 93.6% 90.2% 87.6% 93.0% 91.0%
Recovery - Zinc 85.0% 93.3% 92.4% 92.5% 90.8%
Gold Production oz 9,231 9,432 14,184 14,035 46,882
Silver Dore Production 0z 519 6,002 7,385 8,555 22,460
Concentrate produced DMT 7,693 6,491 5,874 8,081 28,139
Gold Sold oz 9,593 8,913 14,652 13,280 46,439
Concentrate shipped dmt 5,227 4,914 4,886 10,379 25,406
Payable Lead Sold t 1,210 1,230 1,195 2,585 6,220
Payable Zinc Sold t 874 907 931 1,690 4,402
Payable Silver Sold oz 5,225 3,580 4722 6,164 19,691

HERA UNDERGROUND
During the year 307,240 tonnes ore was mined grading 6.03g/t Au, 14g/t Ag, 2.66% Pb and 2.52% Zn.

Mine development had progressed well ahead of schedule in the previous year, allowing lateral development to
be halted in the first half of the financial year, re-commencing in January 2016.

During the year the mine switched exclusively to the bench stope mining method using 100% loose rock fill.

A re-tender of the Hera underground mining contract was completed in May, with the incumbent, Pybar
Mining Services, awarded the contract. The updated rates, together with a modified mining plan, are expected
to realise reductions in excess of 20% over the previous rates and plan. The re-tendered rates commenced on 1
June 2016.

HERA PROCESS PLANT

The Hera site processed 308,118 tonnes of ore for the year, grading 6g/t Au, 2.71% Pb and 2.52% Zn. Process
plant throughput through the year averaged 40tph at 89% availability. Process plant throughput remained
below design at the end of the financial year.

The Hera Process plant remained the main focus for business improvement during the year. A number of
processing improvement and initiatives were successfully completed in the year, including:

e Improvements in the operation of the concentrate leach circuit, including replacement agitators, up
comers, and improved reagent dosing control
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e Substantial improvements in the operation of the Merrill Crowe circuit, which recovers gold from the
leach solution

e  Gold room furnace and ventilation upgrade

e Installation of a gravity circuit upgrade including additional grinding capacity

e Installation of a thickener to clarify mine water to allow for more efficient usage of underground
water.

e Introduction of contract crushing to produce a finer crushed product and improve process plant
throughput

e Installation and commissioning of primary cyclones

e  Conversion of the primary vertimill to bottom feed

e Achange in flotation reagents providing improved zinc recoveries as well as a reduction in silica in the
final lead-zinc concentrate

These initiatives drove a continuous improvement in process plant performance, as highlighted by:
e Improvement in gold recovery from 72.% to 83.9% over the year
e Strong lead and zinc recoveries for the year, being 91% and 90.8% respectively

At year end, further improvements in the processing plant remain the Company's focus, in particular gold
recovery, plant throughput and further reduction of process operating costs.

Aurelia also continues to investigate the expansion opportunities for Hera, with a particular focus on removing
the apparent process plant constraints when processing higher lead+zinc ore types.

PERMITTING AND LICENCING

During the period Aurelia received approval for a modification to its existing Hera Project Approval from the
NSW Dept of Planning. The approval is for:

An increase in the annual production of the Hera Mine from 355,000 tonnes to 505,000 tonnes
An increase of the life of the Hera Mine from 31 December 2020 to 31 December 2022

An expansion of the approved Run-of-Mine (ROM) Pad

Construction of an additional waste rock emplacement to the north

Inclusion of an additional hardstand area for a laydown yard

An extension of the existing carpark

An update of the existing approval to reflect the as-constructed layout of the Mine

The modification was sought to adjust approvals to the Hera Project as-constructed and also in anticipation of
a future decision to proceed with the Hera Project expansion. No decision has yet been made regarding the
proposed expansion.

In addition, Aurelia applied for a further project modification and lodged a new Mining Lease Application,
required to extend the mining area to the north to provide for the eventual extraction of the high grade North
Pod mineralisation.

The company also secured the purchase of additional water licensing and installed additional water bores

within the existing borefield. This is designed to build additional contingency and provide sufficient water
capacity for the Hera expansion once progressed.

AURELIA METALS LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2016 1
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CORPORATE
GLENCORE DISPUTE AND SETTLEMENT

In July 2015, Aurelia entered into a dispute with its major lenders Glencore. The dispute was
crystallised when Aurelia lodged conversion notices for:

e  Facility B - for the conversion of $50 million + capitalised and accrued interest, to shares at $0.2424 per
share

e  Facility A - for the conversion of $20 million + capitalised and accrued interest, to shares at $0.2563 per
share

Glencore refuted the validity of the conversion process by issuing a Notice of Default, claiming one or more of
the borrowers insolvent. The default notice was rejected by the Company.

Glencore and Aurelia agreed a number of consecutive standstill arrangements during the quarter to allow for
negotiations between the parties to seek an agreed settlement to the dispute.

Negotiations between the parties ceased on 14 September, and, without consultation, Glencore appointed a
voluntary administrator to Aurelia and its subsidiaries on the grounds of alleged insolvency.

Aurelia rejected allegation of insolvency claiming the administrator appointment was invalid. Aurelia
successfully obtained an injunction from the Supreme Court of NSW restraining the administration and
suspending the operation of the administrator.

The dispute was heard with the dispute being heard by the NSW Supreme Court on the 4th and 5th November
2015, following which the court reserved judgment.

On 25 November, Aurelia and Glencore reached a settlement and funding agreement. The Agreement
highlights are:

e Alllegal disputes with Glencore are settled
e Atwo yearinterest free period and a two year suspension of debt repayment across all facilities****

e Glencore to provide additional funding of a net $21.5 million to support the business through additional
loans and credit support

e  Aurelia maintains conversion rights to convert up to $77 million of the facilities at the end of the two year
deferral period

**Except the A$15m Pre-Export Finance Loan, where repayments commence 12 months after drawdown

The Agreement was reached under a binding term sheet which was subsequently restated in a more complete
and precise manner in formal agreements executed on 18 December 2015.

On 31 March 2016, Aurelia and Glencore satisfied all the conditions precedent to the Glencore Funding and
Settlement Agreement ('Agreement’)

As part of the Agreement, Glencore provided a new converting note facility of $20 million (Facility F), of which
$5 million was received in November 2015 as an advance payment on agreeing the terms of the revised
financing agreement.

In April 2016, in accordance with the Agreement, Aurelia made a further drawdown of $13.5 million from

Facility F which was immediately applied as a part repayment of convertible note Facility A. As a result, the
balance of Facility A is now $10.1 million.
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The balance of Facility A can be converted by the Company, subject to certain conditions, into shares at a
conversion price consistent with the existing contract price adjusted in accordance with the Convertible Notes
Deed Poll, at any time up to maturity of the facility on 30 September 2020.

A summary of the key terms of the new agreement and the current loan balances is detailed below:

Interest
Liability End of margin

Face Value value Payment Convertible over BBSW

$ recognised $ | Suspension Maturity into Shares (basis pts)
Facility A 10,080 9,087 31-Mar-18 30-Sep-20 | Yes (1) | 400-450
Facility B 57,061 51,442 31-Mar-19 | (4) | 30-Sep-21 | Yes (2) | 400-450
Facility C 33,441 29,913 31-Mar-18 30-Sep-20 | No 400-450
Facility D - - Undrawn (3)
Facility E 5,968 5,329 31-Mar-18 30-Apr-19 | No 400-450
Facility F 18,500 16,678 31-Mar-19 | (4) | 30-Sep-21 | Yes (2) | 400-450

125,050 112,449

(1) Convertible into shares at any time until maturity at $0.251/share or as adjusted consistent with the
Convertible Note Deed Poll.

(2) Convertible into shares within five business days prior to 31 March 2018. Conversion price is based on
the 60-day volume weighted average price of the Company'’s ordinary shares prior to the conversion
notice.

(3) $50 million Nymagee facility remains undrawn and unavailable until approved Bankable Feasibility
Study delivered for Nymagee project.

(4) Repayment date is set for all debt not converted according to (2) above.
OPTIONS

During the year Aurelia issued 50m share options with a 5 year term at a 1.25c strike as per below:
e 10m options to Pybar Mining Services in consideration for revised payment terms on outstanding
liabilities and
e  40m options to Pacific Road Capital Management (PRCM) as a commitment fee with respect to
funding arrangements announced on 9 September 2015

Shareholder approval for the Pybar options was obtained at the Annual General Meeting held on 30 November
2015. Shareholder approval for the Pacific Road options was obtained at the General Meeting held on 18
March 2016.

In addition, as part of the Settlement Agreement, Aurelia issued 108 million options to Glencore, for which
shareholder approval was obtained at the General Meeting of 18 March 2016. The Glencore options are only
exercisable into Aurelia shares, in whole or in part, by Glencore at any time within 24 months of Aurelia having
elected to convert Facility A.

LISTING RULE 6.18 WAIVERS

ASX has granted a waiver from Listing Rule 6.18 to the extent necessary to permit Pacific Road Capital Pty Ltd
and Glencore PLC to maintain their respective percentage interests in the Company (anti-dilute right), by way
of a right to participate in any issue of shares in respect of a diluting event, subject to certain conditions. The
PacRoad waiver came into effective from 28 January 2015 following completion of the issue of 24,661,011
ordinary shares at an issue price of $0.234, and for Glencore the waiver came into effect on 11 February 2013
following the execution of a subscription agreement with the Company. The parties anti-dilute rights remain
subject to certain conditions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A Copy of the Company’s Corporate Governance Statement is located on the Company’s website:
http://www.aureliametals.com/about/Corporate-Governance.aspx

AURELIA METALS LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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STATEMENT OF RESOURCES AND RESERVES

In June, Aurelia provided an update to the Mineral Resource Estimate and Ore Reserves Estimate for its 100%
owned Hera gold-lead-zinc-silver Project in NSW.

Hera Mineral Resource Estimate — June 2016:

Category Tonnes NSR Au (g/t) | Ag(g/t) Pb (%) Zn (%)
($/t)

Measured 821,000 5.65 14.7 2.73 3.19
Indicated 764,000 322 3.94 19.6 3.06 5.12
Inferred 1,113,000 334 3.10 58.2 4.77 5.91
Total 2,698,000 344 4.12 34.0 3.67 4.86

Note: The Hera Resource Estimate utilises an AS120/tonne NSR cut-off. NSR stands for Net Smelter Return
and is an estimate of the net recoverable value per tonne. Tonnage estimates have been rounded to nearest
1,000 tonnes. A full summary of the Estimate is included with this release as Appendix 1.

The updated Mineral Resource Estimate represents an 8% increase in tonnage over the previous estimate
(allowing for mining depletion) and an 18% increase in gold grade. Lead and zinc grades have increased 1% and
2% respectively over the previous Estimate. The Mineral Resource estimate has been completed in accordance
with the guidelines of the JORC Code (2012 edition). The Mineral Resource Estimate includes the Ore Reserves
Estimate below.

An updated Ore Reserve Estimate has been calculated from the Hera Mineral Resource Model, using Measured
and Indicated categories only.

Hera Ore Reserves Estimate — June 2016:

Category Geological lenses Tonnes (t) (';75 Au(g/t) | Ag(g/t) Pb (%) Zn (%)
Far West 350,000 282 4.35 19.8 3.06 5.06
1530 5,000 200 3.92 10.9 1.33 0.90
Probable Hays South 28,000 286 5.52 7.6 1.50 2.69
Main North 289,000 273 463 15.4 274 3.54
Main South 307,000 342 6.41 14.1 2.83 2.92
Total Ore Reserves 979,000 298 51 16.3 2.84 3.85

Note: The Hera Reserve Estimate utilises an AS170/tonne NSR cut-off. NSR stands for Net Smelter Return and
is an estimate of the net recoverable value per tonne. Tonnage estimates have been rounded to nearest 1,000
tonnes. A full summary of the Estimate is included with this release as Appendix 2.

The updated Ore Reserves Estimate represents a 43% increase in gold grade over the previous Ore Reserves
Estimate (Sept. 2011), a 14% increase in lead grade and a 10% increase in zinc grade, reflecting the updated
Hera block model. The Ore Reserves also reflect a 48% reduction in tonnage against the previous Reserve,
representing 500,516 tonnes of mining depletion and a lift in Reserve cut-off from an NSR of $140/t to an NSR
cut-off $170/t.

AURELIA METALS LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Ag g/t

INDICATED
Shallow Cu Resource (above 90mRL) 0.3% Cu 5,147,000 1.00 0.10 0.20 5
Deeper Cu Resource (below 90m RL) 0.75% Cu 1,984,000 1.80 0.30 0.60 1
Lead-Zinc-Silver Lens 5% Pb+Zn 364,000 0.50 4.40 7.80 41
INFERRED
Deeper Cu Resource (below 90m RL) 0.75% Cu 601,000 1.30 0.10 0.20 8
GLOBAL 8,096,000 1.20 0.30 0.70 9
Contained Metal (tonnes) 96,000t | 27,000 | 53,000 69
Midway & 3KEL deposits — Doradilla JV (AMI earning 70%) — February 2008
d O
Category | Sn Cut-off T‘z:,l';es % Sn Tonnes (M) % Sn Tonnes (M) % Sn
Inferred 0.1% 4.63 0.25 3.18 0.34 7.81 0.29
Inferred 0.2% 1.97 0.4 1.85 0.48 3.82 0.44
Inferred 0.5% 0.38 0.92 0.56 0.89 0.94 0.90
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COMPETENT PERSONS STATEMENTS

Competent Persons Statement — Exploration Results

The information in this report that relates to Exploration Results is based on information compiled by Rimas Kairaitis, who is a Member of the Australasian
Institute of Mining and Metallurgy. Rimas Kairaitis is a fulltime employee of Aurelia Metals and has sufficient experience which is relevant to the style of
mineralisation and type of deposit under consideration and to the activity which he is undertaking to qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the 2012
Edition of the ‘Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves.” Mr Kairaitis consents to the inclusion in this report
of the matters based on his information in the form and context in which it appears.

Competent Persons Statement —Hera Resource Estimate

The Resource Estimates for the Hera deposit have been compiled by Stuart Jeffrey — Hera Project, BSc (Hons), MSc (Econ Geology), MAusIMM. Mr Jeffrey is a
full time employee of Aurelia Metals Limited and has sufficient experience which is relevant to the style of mineralization and type of deposit under
consideration and to the activity which he is undertaking to qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the 2012 Edition of the ‘Australasian Code for
Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves’. Mr Jeffrey consents to the inclusion in this report of the matters based on his
information in the form and context in which it appears. Technical guidance and review has been provided by Mr Arnold van der Heyden (BSc, MAusIMM (CP
Geo), MAIG), Managing Director of H&S Consultants Pty Ltd.

The information on the Nymagee Resource Estimate is extracted from the ASX Reports available on the Aurelia Metals Website:

. Hera Resources and Reserves— 28 June 2016

The Company confirms that it is not aware of any new information or data that materially affects the information included in the original market
announcement and that all material assumptions and technical parameters underpinning the estimates in the relevant market announcement continue to
apply and have not materially changed. The Company confirms that the form and context in which the Competent Person’s findings are presented have not
been materially modified from the original market announcement.

Competent Persons Statement — Nymagee Resource Estimate

The Resource Estimation for the Nymagee deposits has been completed by Mr Dean Fredericksen who is a Member of the Australasian Institute of Mining and
Metallurgy. Mr Dean Fredericksen has sufficient experience which is relevant to the style of mineralisation and type of deposit under consideration and to the
activity which he is undertaking to qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the 2012 Edition of the ‘Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results,
Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves.’ Mr Fredericksen consents to the inclusion in this report of the matters based on his information in the form and context
in which it appears. The information on the Nymagee Resource Estimate is extracted from the ASX Reports available on the Aurelia Metals Website:

. Maiden Nymagee Resource Estimate - 22 December 2011

The Company confirms that it is not aware of any new information or data that materially affects the information included in the original market
announcement and that all material assumptions and technical parameters underpinning the estimates in the relevant market announcement continue to
apply and have not materially changed. The Company confirms that the form and context in which the Competent Person’s findings are presented have not
been materially modified from the original market announcement.

Competent Persons Statement — Hera Ore Reserve Estimate

The Ore Reserves were compiled by Jim Simpson, the Manager Mining at the Hera Gold Mine. Mr Simpson has worked at polymetallic mines at Golden Grove,
Mt Isa Mines and Peak Gold Mines. Mr Simpson is a mining engineer with a BE Min Eng obtained at the University of NSW and has worked in underground hard
rock mines since 1986 with 30 years' experience. The Ore Reserve Estimate was produced on site. Mr Simpson has sufficient experience which is relevant to
the style of mineralization, type of deposit and mining method under consideration and to the activity which he is undertaking to qualify as a Competent
Person as defined in the 2012 Edition of the 'Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves’. Mr Simpson is a
chartered professional and member of the AusIMM and also a registered mining engineer of Queensland, New South Wales and Western Australia. The
information on the Hera Ore Reserve is extracted from the ASX Report available on the Aurelia Metals Website:

. Hera Resources and Reserves— 28 June 2016

The Company confirms that it is not aware of any new information or data that materially affects the information included in the original market
announcement and that all material assumptions and technical parameters underpinning the estimates in the relevant market announcement continue to
apply and have not materially changed. The Company confirms that the form and context in which the Competent Person’s findings are presented have not
been materially modified from the original market announcement.

Competent Persons Statement — 3KEL-Midway Resource Estimation

The resource estimates of oxide material at 3KEL and Midway have been performed by Dr William Yeo, MAusIMM, as an employee of Hellman & Schofield Pty
Ltd and who qualifies as a Competent Person under the meaning of the 2012 JORC Code. He consents to the inclusion of these estimates, and the attached
notes, in the form and context in which they appear.

The information on the Nymagee and Hera Resource estimates is extracted from the ASX Reports available on the Aurelia Website:

. Inferred Resource for 3KEL and Midway Laterite Deposits — 3 March 2008
The Company confirms that it is not aware of any new information or data that materially affects the information included in the original market
announcement and that all material assumptions and technical parameters underpinning the estimates in the relevant market announcement continue to

apply and have not materially changed. The Company confirms that the form and context in which the Competent Person’s findings are presented have not
been materially modified from the original market announcement.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The following report is submitted in respect of the results of Aurelia Metals Limited (‘Aurelia’ or ‘the
Company') and its subsidiaries, together the consolidated group (‘Group’), for the financial year ended 30
June 2016, together with the state of affairs of the Group as at that date.

1. DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The names, qualifications and experience of the Company'’s Directors in office during the financial year and
until the date of this report are as follows. Directors and Officers were in office for this entire period unless
otherwise stated.

Anthony Wehby
Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Anthony Wehby was a partner with PWC Australia (Coopers & Lybrand) for 19 years during which time he
specialised in the provision of corporate finance advice to a wide range of clients including those in the
mining and exploration sectors. Since 2001, Mr Wehby has maintained a financial consulting practice,
advising corporate clients considering significant changes to their business activities. Mr Wehby is a Fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and a Member of the Australian Institute of Company
Directors. Mr Wehby is Chairman of Kingston Resources Limited, a Director of Royal Rehab, and was
previously Chairman of Tellus Resources Limited until December 2013.

Mr Wehby was appointed as a Director of the Company on 14 September 2006 and appointed as Chairman
on 13 December 2011.

Jim Simpson
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Jim Simpson is a Mining Engineer with a 30 year history in the industry, specialising in underground
metalliferous mining. His previous roles include General Manager at Mt Isa Mines and at the Peak Gold
Mine in Cobar and Chief Operating Officer for Peak Gold (TSX). Mr Simpson’s experience ranges from mine
management through to equity market participation in the C$328m listing of Peak Gold on the TSX. In the
last three years, Mr Simpson has held one directorship with TSX-listed WCB Resources from 8 April 2010 to
T August 2016.

Mr Simpson was appointed as Managing Director of the Company on 1 August 2016 and appointed as Chief
Executive Officer on 1 September 2016.

Rimas Kairaitis
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

(Resigned as Director on 2 August 2015 and resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 31 August 2016)

Rimas Kairaitis is a geologist with over 20 years’ experience in minerals exploration and resource
development in gold, base metals and industrial minerals, working with companies including Shell Minerals,
Plutonic Resources, CRA (Rio Tinto) and Alkane Resources. Mr Kairaitis has a strong exploration track
record, leading the geological field team to the discovery of the Tomingley Gold depositin NSWin 2001 and
the McPhillamy’s Gold Deposit in 2006. He graduated with a Bachelor of Applied Science {Geology) with
first class Honours and University Medal in 1992 from the University of Technology, Sydney. He is also a
member of the Australian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy.

Mr Kairaitis was a founding Director of Aurelia Metals Limited from 24 March 2004 to 27 March 2007. He
was appointed as Managing Director on 12 June 2008 and resigned on 2 August 2015.

In the last three years, Mr Kairaitis has held no other listed company directorships.
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Gary Comb
Independent Non-Executive Director

Gary Comb is an engineer with over 30 years’ experience in the Australian Mining Industry, both with mining
companies and in mining contractor roles. From 2003, Mr Comb was Managing Director of Jabiru Metals
Limited, taking the Jaguar Copper/Zinc Project from discovery through feasibility, construction to
operations. Jabiru Metals was taken over by Independence Group Limited for A$532 million in 2011. Prior to
joining Jabiru, Mr Comb was the Chief Executive Officer of BGC Contracting Pty Ltd, the mining contracting
arm of West Australian construction group BGC Pty Ltd. Mr Comb has also worked in various mining
operational management roles including with Macmahon Contractors, St Barbara Mines, Metana Minerals
and Central Murchison Gold. Mr Comb is currently a Non-Executive Director of Ironbark Zinc Ltd and Non-
Executive Chairman at Finders Resources Ltd, he was previously a director of Jabiru Metals Ltd and Tanami
Gold Ltd.

Mr Comb was appointed as a Director of the Company on 4 July 2012.

Paul Espie
Non-Executive Director

Paul Espie was the founding principal of Pacific Road Capital, a manager of private equity funds investing in
the resources sector internationally, in 2006. He was Chairman of Oxiana Limited during the development
of the Sepon copper/gold project in Laos (2000 to 2003) and prior to that Chairman of Cobar Mines Pty Ltd
after a management buy-out in 1993. Mr Espie was previously responsible for Bank of America operations in
Australia, New Zealand and Papua New Guinea and Chairman of the Australian Infrastructure Fund. He is a
Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors, Trustee of the Australian Institute of Mining &
Metallurgy, Educational Endowment Fund, and a Director of the Menzies Research Centre.

Mr Espie was appointed as a Director of the Company on 10 December 2013.

Michael Menzies
Non-Executive Director

Michael Menzies is a law graduate who has over 35 years of experience in a variety of industrial, operational
and managerial roles within the mining industry in Australia and off- shore, in base metals, gold, mineral
sands and coal. He has worked with Renison Goldfields, CRA Limited and MIM Holdings where he was
Executive General Manager Mining. Following a period employed in Private Equity in project evaluation and
investment advice, in recent times Mr Menzies has been engaged in mining consultancy work primarily
consulting to Glencore. Mr Menzies is a former Director of Australian Mines and Metals Association and
former Vice-President of the Queensland Mining Council.

Mr Menzies was appointed as a Director of the Company on 15 December 2015. He was previously a
Director of the Company from 26 March 2013 to 26 June 2015.

Mark Milazzo
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mark Milazzo is a mining engineer with over 30 years’ experience in the development and management of
mines and mineral processing plants across a range of commodities in Australia and overseas. This includes
both underground and surface operations, and covers a wide range of mining applications, from small scale
selective to mechanised bulk extraction methods. He has been involved in a number of new mine
development and mine expansion projects. Past senior roles include General Manager of the Olympic Dam
Mine and Kambalda Nickel Operations with WMC Resources, and General Manager with mining contractor
HWE Mining. Mr Milazzo is a Fellow of the Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy and a Member of
the Australian Institute of Company Directors. He was previously a Non-Executive Director of Red 5
Limited from May 2011 until June 2016, Mirabela Nickel Limited from June 2014 until September 2015 and
Cortona Resources Limited from May 2011 until January 2013.

Mr Milazzo was appointed as a Director of the Company on 6 August 2012 and resigned on 27 June 2016.

AURELIA METALS LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2016



aurelia

METALS Ltd.

Rune Symann
Non-Executive Director

Rune Symann is a finance professional with over 7 years of experience in mergers & acquisitions, financial
advisory and project management within the resources, power & automation and financial sectors. He is
currently employed by Glencore. Mr Symann's previous experience includes roles with ABB, Ernst & Young
and Amundi. .He holds a bachelor degree in Economics, a Master’s degree in International Management
from HEC Paris in France and a Master’s degree in Finance & Strategic Management from Copenhagen
Business School.

Mr Symann was appointed as a Director of the Company on 15 December 2015.

Mr Richard Willson
Company Secretary

Mr Willson is an accountant with more than 20 years’ experience in public practice and in various senior
financial management, Company Secretarial and Non-Executive Director roles, predominantly within the
resources and agricultural sectors for both publicly listed and private companies. In addition to his role as
Company Secretary of Aurelia Metals Limited, Mr Willson is Company Secretary of ASX listed Beston Global
Food Company Limited and Wilgena Resources Limited, Non-Executive Director of ASX listed company
AusTin Mining Limited, and a Non-Executive Director and Company Secretary of the not-for-profit Unity
Housing Company. Mr Willson was previously a Non-Executive Director of ASX listed Crestal Petroleum
Limited (previously Tellus Resources Limited, now First Wave Cloud Technology Limited) and CFO for
Aurelia Metals and Beston Global Food Company.

Mr Willson was appointed as Company Secretary on 5 February 2010.

2. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At the date of this report the interests of the Directors in the shares and other equity securities of the
Company were:

Directors Ordinary Shares Options Performance Rights
Wehby, Anthony 978,125 - -
Comb, Gary 281,250 - -
Espie, Paul - - -
Menzies, Mike 112,500 - -
Simpson, Jim - - 4,500,000
Symann, Rune - - -

1,371,875 - 4,500,000

a Subject to shareholder approval, if required, Mr Simpson will be granted 4,500,000 Share Rights which will vest upon
the achievement of various key operational performance hurdles, and provide the ability to acquire shares at nil cost.
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3. MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year, the number of meetings of Directors attended by each Director and the number of
meetings held was as follows:

Committees of the Board
Directors’ Meetings Audit Nomination Remuneration
(i) (i) (i) (i) (i) (i) (i) (i)
Anthony Wehby 26 26 2 2 - - - -
Gary Comb 24 26 - - - - - ;
Paul Espie 25 26 - - - - - .
Mark Milazzo 26 26 2 2 - - - -
Rimas Kairaitis 5 5 - - - - - _
Michael Menzies 7 7 - - - - . i
Rune Symann 7 7 - - - - - .

(i) Attended - Number of Board/Board Committee Meetings attended
(ii) Eligible - Number of Board/Board Committee Meetings held which were eligible to be attended

During the year, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee were merged into a single
Remuneration & Nomination Committee. The members of the Board’'s Committees at 30 June 2016 are:

Audit Committee: Anthony Wehby, Rune Symann
Remuneration & Nomination Committee:  Gary Comb, Michael Menzies

4. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

During the financial year, the Company paid a premium in respect of a contract insuring the Directors of the
Company, the company secretaries and all executive officers of the Company and of any related body
corporate against a liability incurred as such a Director, secretary or executive officer to the extent
permitted by the Corporations Act 2007. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of the nature of the
liability and the amount of the premium.

5. INDEMNIFICATION OF AUDITOR

To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditor as part of the terms of its
audit engagement agreement against claims by third parties arising from the audit (for an unspecified
amount). No payment has been made to indemnify the auditor during or since the financial year.

6. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or declared by the Company in the period since the end of the previous financial year,
and up to the date of this report. The Directors do not recommend that any amount be paid by way of
dividend for the financial year ended 30 June 2016.

7. CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Aurelia Metals Limited is a company limited by shares that is incorporated and domiciled in Australia.
Aurelia has four wholly owned subsidiaries, Stannum Pty Ltd (incorporated 15 September 2007), Defiance
Resources Pty Ltd (incorporated 15 May 2007), Hera Resources Pty Ltd (incorporated 20 August 2009) and
Nymagee Resources Pty Ltd (incorporated 7 November 2011).
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As at the date of this report, there were 158,000,000 un-issued ordinary shares under options. The options
are unlisted and have various terms as set out below.
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. . Balance at Granted Exercised Expired .
Grant Expiry Exercise start of during the during the during the Balance at Exercisable
Date Date Price/share 8 8 8 year end at year end
year year year year

29/11/12 29/11/15 35 cents 1,600,000 - - (1,600,000) - -
29/11/12 29/11/15 45 cents 1,100,000 - - (1,100,000) - -
28/09/15 | 28/09/20 1.25 cents - 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000 40,000,000
30/11/15 | 28/09/20 1.25 cents - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 10,000,000
1/04/16 30/09/20 4.0 cents - | 108,000,000 - - | 108,000,000 -
2,700,000 | 158,000,000 - | (2,700,000) | 158,000,000 | 50,000,000
Weighted average exercise price 39.07 cents 3.13 cents - 39.07 cents 3.13 cents 1.25 cents

No option holder has any right under the options to participate in any other share issue of the Company or
any other entity.

o. PERFORMANCE RIGHTS

As at the date of this report, there were 382,000 un-issued ordinary shares subject to Performance Rights.
The Performance Rights are unlisted and have terms as set out below.

Grant Expiry or Exercise Balance at G.ranted Ex.erused FTXPWEd Balance at Exercisable
Test . during the During the during the

Date Price start of year year end at year end
Date year year year

15/03/12 | 15/03/16 nil 570,000 - - (570,000) - -

12/04/13 | 12/04/16 nil 70,000 - - - 70,000 70,000

12/04/13 | 31/12/13 nil 64,000 - - - 64,000 64,000

9/02/15 9/02/18 nil 380,000 - - (180,000) 200,000 -

9/02/15 | 31/12/14 nil 48,000 - - - 48,000 48,000

1,132,000 - - (750,000) 382,000 182,000

The performance rights have various share price and operational performance measures. Refer to the
Remuneration Report for further details. No performance right holder has any right under the performance
right to participate in any other share issue of the Company or any other entity.

10.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Refer to the Operating and Financial Review for information on future prospects of the Company.

1. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Directors are not aware of any environmental incident during the year which would have a material
adverse impact on the Company. During the year, there were six minor reportable incidents at the Hera

Mine. The incidents included events when the timing and number of concentrate truck movements
exceeded allowable limits, two discharges of storm water runoff exceeding stipulated water quality

parameters, and two incidents relating to excessive dust and noise events. The impact of these events were

minor and of very short duration. There have been no regulatory fines in relation to these incidents.

12. CURRENCY AND ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

All references to dollars are a reference to A$ unless otherwise stated. A$ is occasionally used for clarity.

Aurelia Metals Limited is a company of the kind referred to in ASIC Corporations (Rounding in
Financial/Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191 and in accordance with that instrument, amounts in the
Financial/Directors’ Reports are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, except where indicated otherwise.
Due to rounding, numbers presented throughout this document may not add up precisely to the totals

provided.
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OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

1. OVERVIEW

Aurelia Metals Limited is an Australian gold, lead and zinc mining and exploration company. The Company
operates the wholly-owned Hera gold and base metal mine in central New South Wales.

The reported profit for the year was $10.943 million. The turnaround in the second half of the financial year
was significant, with a first half loss of $8.622 million followed by a second half profit of $19.566 million.
The second half profit included a $10.203 million gain from extinguishment of debt. Net operating cash
flow for the period was $23.365 million.

During the year the Company successfully negotiated the settlement of a dispute with its main financier
(Glencore). The dispute occurred from 26 June 2015 to 27 November 2015, with the negotiated outcome of
the dispute delivering a wholesale restructure of its debt facilities. The restructure included a two-year
suspension of interest and debt repayments across all facilities and the provision of additional financing.

The key financial impact of the debt restructuring in the period is a $10.203 million gain from
extinguishment of the existing debt facilities and recognition of the new debt structure. Indirectly
associated with the debt restructuring, the Company issued 50 million options at a strike of 1.25 ¢/share and
108 million Glencore options at a strike of 4c/share (combined share based payment expense of $0.914
million). The Glencore options are only exercisable if the Company elects to convert any of Facility A
Convertible Notes into shares (for further details see Section 2.6. Borrowings).

Whilst the corporate negotiations were occurring, the operational activity focussed on the continued
modification and improvement of the Hera processing facility to achieve design parameters.

Processing throughput remained below design levels during the year. However, the impact of reduced
throughput was offset by strong gold grades and continued improvement in metal recovery. Increased gold
production and strong and rising commodity prices, delivered a strong financial result, particularly in the
second half of the financial year. Physical production data displayed below for 2015 includes production
during the commission phase and from the start of commercial production on 1 April 2015.

2016 2015
Performance Indicators $'000 $'000
Sales Revenue 91,945 13,220
Profit/(Loss) for the period 10,943 (118,158)
EBITDA (a) 41,139 (109,123)
Net Debt 91,759 109,804
Net Operating Cash Flow 23,365 (3,160)
Ore Processed t 308,118 223,215
Gold grade g/t 6.01 292
Lead grade % 2.7% 2.6%
Zinc grade % 2.6% 3.5%
Gold Recovery % 78.2% 61.7%
Lead Recovery % 91.0% 86.2%
Zinc Recovery % 90.8% 78.4%
Gold production oz 46,882 12,930
Lead production t - contained metal 7,628 5,057
Zinc production t - contained metal 7,202 5,995
Gold sold oz 46,439 3,924
Average gold price received A$/oz 1,615 1,578
Concentrate sold (DMT) 25,406 10,144

(a) EBITDA is a non-IFRS measure. See Performance Indicators Table in the Remuneration Report for a
reconciliation to Profit/(Loss) in the period.
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Cost reduction activities continued during the year and included the renegotiation of the mining contract,
resulting in significant savings from June 2016. Increased revenue and reduced unit mining costs increased
EBITDA to $41.139 million (2015: ($109.123) million). The prior year was impacted by a $92.916 million
impairment charge.

On 28 June 2016, the Company released an updated Resources and Reserves Estimate. The updated Mineral
Resource Estimate represented an 8% increase in tonnage (allowing for mine depletion) and an 18%
increase in gold grade. The updated Ore Reserves Estimate represented a 43% increase in gold grade. The
Resource and Reserve Estimate totals were:

e Total Mineral Resource Estimate of 2.698 Mt at 4.12 g/t gold, 3.67% Pb, 4.86% Zn
e Total Ore Reserve Estimate of 0.979 Mt at 5.11 g/t gold, 2.84% Pb, 3.85% Zn

On 12 July 2016, a forward gold sales program was initiated. The Company sold approximately 11,200
ounces of gold at a price of approximately A$1,785/0z with deliveries to early 2017.

The Company announced on 29 July 2016 the retirement of Rimas Kairaitis as Chief Executive Officer on 31
August 2016. Rimas has steered the Company as Chief Executive Office since its formation in 2004 and
grown the business from an exploration company focused on tin prospects to a gold and base metal
producer with the successful acquisition and development of the Hera Mine.

Jim Simpson was appointed Managing Director on 1 August 2016 and Chief Executive Officer on 1
September 2016. Mr Simpson is an experienced manager, specialising in underground metalliferous mining.
The Board believes that Mr Simpson has the experience and skills required to provide the next stage of
growth in Aurelia.

2. OPERATING AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The second half of the year to 30 June 2016 registered a strong performance, with improvements in ore
throughput, gold grades and recovery and gold price. The table below displays the significantly improved
metrics in the six months to 30 June 2016 (H2 2016) relative to six months to 31 December 2015 (H12016).

2016 H2 2016 H1 2016
Performance Indicators $'000 $'000 $'000
Sales Revenue 91,945 57,512 34,432
Profit/(Loss) for the period 10,943 19,566 (8,622)
EBITDA (a) 41,139 37,365 3,773
Net Operating Cash Flow 23,365 19,276 4,089
Ore Processed t 308,118 158,186 149,932
Gold grade g/t 6.01 6.71 5.26
Lead grade % 2.7% 2.6% 2.8%
Zinc grade % 2.6% 2.5% 27%
Gold Recovery % 78.2% 82.5% 73.6%
Lead Recovery % 91.0% 90.2% 91.9%
Zinc Recovery % 90.8% 92.5% 89.2%
Gold production oz 46,882 28,219 18,663
Lead production t - contained metal 7,628 3,736 3,891
Zinc production t - contained metal 7,202 3,582 3,620
Gold sold oz 46,439 27,932 18,506
Average gold price received A$/oz 1,615 1,659 1,548
Concentrate sold (DMT) 25,406 15,265 10,141

(a) EBITDA is a non-IFRS measure. See Performance Indicators Table in the Remuneration Report for a

reconciliation to Profit/(Loss) in the period.
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2.1 Sales

Sales revenue for the period was $91.945 million, including $75.007 million derived from gold sales and
$16.418 million derived from the sale of lead zinc concentrates. Gold sales were derived from the sale of
46,439 oz of gold at an average price of A$1,615/0z. Concentrate sales were derived from the sale of
25,406 dmt of lead zinc concentrate shipped.

Gold forward sales of 11,200 oz, to protect against adverse movements in price, were entered into after
balance date.

2.2. Production

Gold production for the operating period was 46,882 ounces. Gold production was derived from the
processing of 308,118 tonnes of ore grading 6.01 g/t gold, 2.71% lead and 2.58% zinc. Gold recovery
averaged 78.15%. During the period, the Company produced 28,139 tonnes of lead zinc concentrate grading
27.11% lead and 25.60% zinc.

Processing throughput during the year remained below nameplate capacity, largely due to issues associated
with plant stability and volatility in ore feed grades, particularly high base metal grades. The processing of
very high sulphide ore parcels occasionally exceeded the capacity of the back end of the processing plant.
Significant effort is being applied to improve throughput, including options to expand base metal production
capacity.

Gold recovery improved over the year with stability of the Merrill Crowe circuit the primary driver for gold
recovery above 80% during the second half of the year.

The performance of the underground mine remained positive with a total of 307,240 tonnes of ore mined
during the year at an average grade of 6.03 g/t gold, 2.66% lead and 2.52% zinc. Underground lateral
development of 1,287 metres was achieved during the year, comprising 623 metres of operating and 664
metres of capital development. A lower schedule of rates based on the re-tendered mining contract was
applied from June 2016 which will result in significant cost savings.

2.3. Operating Costs

Total cost of sales for the period was $78.771 million. Site production costs were $51.264 miillion (mining
costs of $23.792 million, processing costs of $23.588 million and site admin departments), transport and
refining costs were $4.618 million (gold refining charges, concentrate trucking, rail, port and shipping
charges) and a credit to costs of $2.170 million relating to an increase in inventory at year end. Depreciation
charged in the period was $23.425 million.

2.4. Corporate Administration costs

Corporate costs for the period were $4.935 million including $0.244 million of depreciation. Included in the
period were legal, advisory and court costs of $1.263 million associated with the Glencore dispute.

2.5. Cash flow

As at 30 June 2016, the Company held cash in bank of $21.595 million ($3.483 million is unavailable and
held as cash deposits for environmental bonds). Operating cash flow for the period was positive $23.365
million and is after outflows relating to the reduction of $8.559 million in creditors during the year.

Investment cash outflows were $10.083 million relating to mine development and processing plant capital.

Net cash flow from financing activities was positive $3.465 million. The key inflow related to a net $5.000
million inflow from Glencore borrowings. Outflows were related to reduction in equipment finance loans
and other borrowings of $0.886 million and other charges of $0.648 million.
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The debt liability to Glencore at balance date had a fair value of $112.449 million and a face value {(nominal
value) of $125.050 million. Net debt {debt less cash) reduced over the year from $109.804 million at 30
June 2015 to $91.759 million as at 30 June 2016 due to a positive operating surplus.

Gearing, defined as net debt/(net debt + equity), reduced from 148% to 135% over the year. The gearing
level is noted to be excessive but is mitigated by the suspension of debt obligations for two years (see
Section 2.7 below). The Company'’s aim is to reduce gearing to manageable levels through the repayment of
outstanding debt and/or debt conversion into equity, if and when commercially rational and to the extent it
is possible (see below Section 2.7 (f). Conversion Rights).

2.7.

Debt Restructure and Fair Value of Borrowings

On 1 April 2016, the Company concluded a major restructure of its secured borrowings with Glencore. The
restructuring resulted in certain changes to the loan terms of all facilities. A summary of the key terms of
the new agreement and the current loan balances is detailed below:

Interest

Liability margin

value End of over

Face Value  recognised Payment Convertible BBSW

$ $ Suspension Maturity  into Shares {basis pts)
Facility A 10,080 9,087 31-Mar-18 30-Sep-20 Yes (1) 400-450
Facility B 57,061 51,442 31-Mar-19 (4) 30-Sep-21 Yes {2)  400-450
Facility C 33,441 29,913  31-Mar-18 30-Sep-20 No 400-450

Facility D - - Undrawn (3)
Facility E 5,968 5,329 31-Mar-18 30-Apr-19 No 400-450
Facility F 18,500 16,678 31-Mar-19  (4) 30-Sep-21 Yes (2) 400-450
125,050 112,449

(1) Convertible into shares at any time until maturity at $0.251/share or as adjusted consistent with the
Convertible Note Deed Poll.
(2) Convertible into shares within five business days prior to 31 March 2018. Conversion price is based on
the 60-day volume weighted average price of the Company’s ordinary shares prior to the conversion

notice.

(3) $50 million Nymagee facility remains undrawn and unavailable until approved Bankable Feasibility
Study delivered for Nymagee project.

(4) Repayment date is set for all debt not converted according to (2) above.

(a) Deferral of debt and interest obligations

The restructure affected the debt obligations in the following ways:
all repayments on current and new facilities are deferred until 31 March 2018
all interest is suspended on current and new facilities until 31 March 2018

The maturity date for Facility A and Facility C was reset to 30 September 2020.
The maturity date for Facility B and Facility F was reset to 30 September 2021, for any amounts
that remain unconverted into shares at 31 March 2018 (see conversion rights below).
The maturity date for Facility E was reset to 30 April 2019.

(b) Provision of new debt

The restructure provided new funding via an additional loan facility:

Provision of a new $20 million debt facility (Facility F)

$5 million was drawn from Facility F in November 2015 as a pre-completion early advance and;
A mandatory drawdown of $13.5 million on 1 April 2015 from Facility F was applied against the
outstanding balance of Convertible Note Facility A.
The remaining balance of Facility F is not available for drawdown.
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e  Anew Facility G was provided as part of the debt package. Facility G is a $15 million facility with
an availability period until 18 December 2016. If drawn, the loan is repayable from 31 March 2017
via a US$175/dmt deduction from concentrate sales, subject to a minimum quarterly repayment of
US$1.8 million. The facility has certain mine operating covenants (processing throughput rates,
metal recoveries) that operate once the facility is drawn. If a default is not cured satisfactorily, a
default on Facility G is a cross default on all Glencore facilities.

e Under the current business plan, there is no requirement to draw Facility G.

(c) Interest

The original interest rates applicable to the loans are maintained. Interest rates are variable and are set at a
400-450 basis point margin over BBSW.

(d) Upside repayment

From 18 June 2016 to 31 March 2018, the Company is obligated to undertake a mandatory repayment,
applied equally against all facilities, to the extent that the preceding three month Group CFADS (Cash Flow
Available for Debt Service) exceeds $10 million. The repayment is any excess greater than $10 million in
each testing period.

(e) Provision of Glencore Options

As part of the debt restructure, the Company granted 108 million options exercisable at $0.04/share to
Glencore. These options may only be exercised by Glencore if the Company converts any of Facility A into
shares.

(f) Conversion Rights

The outstanding balance of Facility A, after the mandatory $13.5 million repayment on 1 April 2016, is
convertible at any time until maturity at $0.251/share or as adjusted consistent with the Convertible Note
Deed Poll. The outstanding balance of Facility A at 30 June 2016 had a liability value of $9.087 million and a
face value of $10.080 million.

All or part of Facility B and Facility F are convertible into ordinary shares if the Company makes a once-off
election within five business days prior to 31 March 2018. The conversion price is based on the 60-day
volume weighted average price of the Company’s ordinary shares prior to the lodgement of the conversion
notice.

The outstanding balance of Facility B at 30 June 2016 had a liability value of $51.442 million and a face
value of $57.061 million.

The outstanding balance of Facility F at 30 June 2016 had a liability value of $16.678 million and a face value
of $18.500 million.

Facility C and Facility E are not convertible.
(g) Fair value adjustment of borrowings

The Company is required under accounting standards to account for an exchange between borrower and
lender with 'substantially different’ terms as an extinguishment of the original facility and the recognition of
a new financial liability. An assessment concluded that the debt restructured was completed on
substantially different terms and required the Company to derecognise the existing liability and recognise
the fair value of the new liability. The difference between the carrying amounts of the respective liabilities
has been recognised in the income statement.

The gain from extinguishment on 1 April 2016, after the expensing of all borrowing costs, was $10.203
million.

At balance date, the Company has recognised the fair value of borrowings at $112.449 million. These
borrowings are classified as non-current borrowings.

The fair value of the debt at balance date can be compared to the face value of debt at balance date of
$125.050 million payable to Glencore. Asthe Company approaches the March 2018 amortisation start
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date, the fair value of the debt will increase to approximate the face value of debt. This unwinding of the
discount on the fair value of the debt will be expensed in future periods as a finance charge.

The change in the fair value of the debt from the restructure date of 1 April 2016 to 30 June 2016 was
$1.734 million. This amount has been expensed as a finance charge in the current period.

3. MATERIAL BUSINESS RISKS

Aurelia Metals prepares its business plan using estimates of production and financial performance based on
a range of assumptions and forecasts. There is uncertainty in these assumptions and forecasts, and risk that
variation from them could result in actual performance being different to expected outcomes. The
uncertainties arise from a range of factors, including the nature of the mining industry and general economic
factors. The material business risks faced by the Group that may have an impact on the operating and
financial prospects of the Group as at 30 June 2016 are:

Financial solvency

The Company has significant long term financial obligations. Maintaining sufficient liquidity to operate the
business is impacted by the operational and financial risk factors identified below. Additional risk factors
relate to the Company’s ability to reorganise its debts when required to manage any liquidity events.

The Company currently has a single source of income from one operating asset. The lack of asset diversity,
together with significant debt amounts, can exacerbate overall risk to the Company.

Fluctuations in the commodity price

The Group's revenues are exposed to fluctuations in the price of gold, silver, lead and zinc. Volatility in
metal prices creates revenue uncertainty and requires careful management of business performance to
ensure that operating cash margins are maintained despite volatile metal prices.

Metal prices are denominated in USD$ dollars, hence the Company has a foreign exchange price risk when
the USDS$ price of a particular commodity is translated back to A$ dollars.

Declining metal prices can also impact operations by requiring a reassessment of the feasibility of a
particular exploration or development project. Even if a project is ultimately determined to be economically
viable, the need to conduct such a reassessment could cause substantial delays and/or may interrupt
operations, which may have a material adverse effect on results of operations and financial condition.

Mineral reserves and resources

Company ore reserves and mineral resources are estimates, and no assurance can be given that the
estimated reserves and resources are accurate or that the indicated level of metal or other mineral will be
produced. Such estimates are, in large part, based on interpretations of geological data obtained from drill
holes and other sampling techniques. Actual mineralisation or geological conditions may be different from
those predicted. No assurance can be given that any part or all of Company’s mineral resources constitute
or will be converted into reserves.

Market price fluctuations of metal prices as well as increased production and capital costs may render the
Company’s ore reserves unprofitable to develop for periods of time or may render mineral reserves
containing relatively low grade mineralisation uneconomic. Estimated reserves may have to be recalculated
based on actual production experience. Any of these factors may require the Company to modify its
mineral reserves and resources estimates, which could have either a positive or negative impact on the
Company's financial results.

Replacement of depleted reserves

The Company must continually replace reserves depleted by production to maintain production levels over
the long term. Reserves can be replaced by expanding known ore bodies, locating new deposits or acquiring
new assets. Exploration is highly speculative in nature and as such, exploration projects involve many risks
and can often be unsuccessful. Once a site with mineralisation is discovered, it may take several years from
the initial discovery phase until production is possible.
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As a result, there is no assurance that current or future exploration programs will be successful. Thereisa
risk that depletion of reserves will not be offset by discoveries or acquisitions, or that divestures of assets
will lead to a lower reserve base. The mineral base of the Company may decline if reserves are mined
without adequate replacement and the Company may not be able to sustain production beyond the current
mine life, based on current production rates.

Mining risks and insurance risks

The mining industry is subject to significant risks and hazards, including environmental hazards, industrial
accidents, unusual or unexpected geological conditions, unavailability of materials and equipment, rock
failures, cave-ins, and weather conditions (including flooding and bushfires), most of which are beyond the
Company'’s control. These risks and hazards could result in significant costs or delays that could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's financial performance, liquidity and operations results.

The Company maintains insurance to cover some of these risks and hazards. The insurance is maintained in
amounts that are believed to be reasonable depending on the circumstances surrounding each identified
risk. However property, liability and other insurance may not provide sufficient coverage for losses related
to these or other risks or hazards.

Production and cost estimates

The Company, from time to time, prepares internal estimates of future production, cash costs and capital
costs of production. The Company has developed business plans which forecast improvements in metal
recoveries, ore throughput and reductions in operating costs over time from continual improvements at the
Hera operation. While these assumptions are considered reasonable, there can be no guarantee that the
improvements will be achieved. Failure to achieve production or cost estimates could have an adverse
impact on the Company’s future cash flow, profitability and financial solvency.

The Company'’s actual production and costs may vary from estimates for a variety of reasons, including:
actual ore mined varying from estimates of grade, tonnage, dilution and metallurgical and other
characteristics; short-term operating factors relating to the ore reserves, such as the need for sequential
development of ore bodies and the processing of new or different ore grades; revisions to mine plans; risks
and hazards associated with mining; natural phenomena, such as inclement weather conditions, water
availability, floods; and unexpected labour shortages or strikes.

Costs of production may also be affected by a variety of factors, including: ore grade metallurgy, labour
costs, consumable costs, commodity costs, general inflationary pressures and currency exchange rates.

Environmental, health and safety regulations; permits

The Company’s mining and processing operations and exploration activities are subject to extensive laws
and regulations governing the protection of the environment and the health and safety of employees,
including: waste disposal, worker safety, mine development and protection of endangered and other special
status species. The Company'’s ability to obtain permits and approvals and to successfully operate may be
adversely impacted by real or perceived detrimental events associated with the Company’s activities or
those of other mining companies affecting the environment, human health and safety or the surrounding
communities. Delays in obtaining or failure to obtain government permits and approvals may adversely
affect the Company’s operations, including its ability to continue operations.

While the Company has implemented health, safety and community initiatives at its operations to ensure
the health and safety of its employees, contractors and members of the community affected by its
operations, there is no guarantee that such measures will eliminate the occurrence of accidents or other
incidents which may result in personal injuries, damage to property, and in certain instances such
occurrences could give rise to regulatory fines and/or civil liability.

Community relations

The Company operates near established communities. The Company recognises that a failure to
appropriately manage local community stakeholder expectations may lead to dissatisfaction with the
Company which has the potential to disrupt production and exploration activities.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

Significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company during the financial year were:

e 1 July 2015: The Company announced it had received a notice on 26 June from Glencore Group
Funding Limited ("Glencore”) asserting that an event of default had occurred under its loan facility
documentation. Aurelia rejected the notice and engaged in discussions with Glencore.

e 3 August 2015: Resignation of Rimas Kairaitis as Managing Director, but that he would retain the
role of Chief Executive Officer.

e 16 September 2015: Discussions with Glencore on a negotiated refinancing ceased. Without
consultation, on Monday 14 September Glencore attempted to appoint a voluntary administrator
to the Company on the grounds of alleged insolvency. The Company successfully obtained an
injunction from the Supreme Court of NSW deeming the appointment of the administrator was
not effective until a court hearing on the validity of the appointment could be heard.

e 6 November 2015: The Supreme Court of NSW heard the application by the Company and its
subsidiaries. The court reserved judgement.

e 27 November 2015: Resolution of all legal disputes with Glencore, together with a wholesale
restructuring of all existing debt repayments.

e 1 December 2015: Aurelia issued 40M options to Pacific Road Capital Management with respect to
the funding term sheet announced on 9 September 2015 as well as 10M options to Pybar Mining
Services for the deferral of outstanding payments until January 2016.

e 4 April 2016: The financing agreement with Glencore was complete and final as of 1 April 2016.

e 7 April 2016: The NSW Supreme Court proceeding between Glencore and the Company were
dismissed by consent of all parties. The Court's ordered that the purported appointment of
voluntary administrators to Aurelia and its subsidiaries is taken to have never occurred.

Apart from the above, or as noted elsewhere in this report, no significant changes in the state of affairs of
the Company occurred during the financial year.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE DATE

The following significant events occurred after 30 June 2016:

e 12 July 2016: Implementation of a forward gold sales program of approximately 11,200 ounces for
the next 6 months at a price of approximately A$1,785 per oz.

e 29 July 2016: Retirement of Rimas Kairaitis as Chief Executive Officer effective 31 August 2016. Jim
Simpson was appointed Managing Director on 1 August 2016 and Chief Executive Officer on 1
September 2016. The Board's intention is to grant, subject to shareholder approval if required, 4.5
million performance rights to Mr Simpson which will vest upon the achievement of various key
operational performance hurdles, and provide the ability to acquire shares at nil cost.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Other likely developments in the operations of the Company and the expected results of those operations
in future financial years have not been included in this report as the inclusion of such information is likely to
result in unreasonable prejudice to the Company. Accordingly, this information has not been disclosed in
this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

The Company is subject to significant environmental regulation in respect to its exploration, mining and
processing activities. The Company aims to ensure the appropriate standard of environmental care is
achieved, and in doing so it is aware of, and is in compliance, with all environmental legislation. The
Directors of the Company are not aware of any material breach of environmental legislation for the year
under review.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

This remuneration report outlines the director and executive remuneration arrangements of the Company
and the Group in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and its Regulations. For
the purposes of this report, key management personnel (KMP) of the Group are defined as those persons
having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the major activities of the
Company and the Group, directly or indirectly, including any Director (whether executive or otherwise) of

the Company, and includes key management personnel.

1. Key Management Personnel (KMP)
The following table details the Company’s KMP during the financial year.
Directors Position Term
Anthony Wehby Independent Non-Executive Chairman Full year
Gary Comb Independent Non-Executive Director Full year
Paul Espie Non-Executive Director Full year
Mark Milazzo (i Independent Non-Executive Director 1July 2015 to 27 June 2016
Rimas Kairaitis (ii) Managing Director 1July 2015 to 2 August 2015

Michael Menzies

Non-Executive Director

From 15 December 2015

Rune Symann

Non-Executive Director

From 15 December 2015

Executives

Rimas Kairaitis (iii) Chief Executive Officer Full year
Timothy Churcher Chief Financial Officer Full year
Richard Willson Company Secretary Full year

(i) Resigned 27 June 2016
(i) Resigned as Managing Director 2 August 2015, but retained the role of Chief Executive Officer
(iii) Resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 31 August 2016

2. Remuneration Policy and Committee

As part of its Corporate Governance Policies and Procedures, the Board has adopted a formal Remuneration
Committee Charter and has established a Remuneration & Nomination Committee. The Remuneration &
Nomination Committee is responsible for determining and reviewing the appointment and compensation
arrangements of the KMP. The Committee assesses the appropriateness of the nature and amount of
emoluments of such officers on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions
with the overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality
board and executive team. At the Committee’s discretion, the nature and amount of Executive and
Director’s benefits may be linked to the Company'’s financial and operational performance. The quantum
and level of short and long-term incentives is not fixed and remains at the discretion of the Board.

No remuneration consultants were engaged during the period.
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The following table shows the key performance indicators for the Group for the past five years.
Performance across most metrics improved with the continued ramp up of operations at the Hera Mine in
2016. The 2015 year was impacted by an impairment of mine properties and exploration of $92.916 million.

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Performance Indicators $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Sales revenue 91,945 13,220 85 288 583
Profit (loss) for the year 10,943 (118,158) (10,623) 536 (2,077)
EBITDA 41,139 (109,123) (10,666) 396 (3,090)
Net Debt 91,759 109,804 84,992 13,363 (15,087)
(Bcaesrl]isF;roﬁt/(Loss) Per Share 28 (33.0) (3.5) 21.0 (0.8)
Share Price (cents) 13.5 215 229 15.9 25.4

EBITDA is a non-IFRS measure. Reconciliation to Profit (loss) for the year is:

EBITDA 41139 (109,123)  (10,666) 396 (3,090)

Net interest cost (6,526) (2,376) 261 398 1,234

Depreciation & Amortisation (23,669) (6,659) (218) (258) (220)

Profit (loss) for the year 10,943 (118,158) (10,623) 536 (2,077)
2.1 Non-Executive Directors

Non-executive Directors’ fees reflect the responsibilities and demands made of the Directors. Guidance is
obtained as required from independent industry surveys and other sources to ensure that Directors’ fees are
appropriate and in line with the market. The Chairman’s fees reflect the additional responsibilities of the
role and are based on comparative positions in the industry.

The Board fees for Non-executive Directors are $50,000 and $90,000 for the Chairman. No fees are paid to
Board sub-committee members. Statutory superannuation contributions are paid to Board members who
are paid directly by the Company. The maximum total Directors’ fee pool approved by shareholders which
may be paid by the Company to all the non-executive Directors is $600,000 per year.

Variable remuneration in the form of share based options have been granted to non-executive Directors in
prior years. All existing Director share options expired unexercised during the 2016 year. No additional
grant of share options to Directors was made during the year.

2.2. Company Executives

The Company’s remuneration arrangements have been designed to maintain alignment with the
shareholders’ interests (both short term and long term) and to ensure remuneration remains competitive,
This is to enable the Company to retain and attract talented people, who are critical to delivering the
Company’s strategy and ability to deliver a sustainable increase in shareholder value.

The remuneration structure for Executive comprises fixed and variable remuneration. Fixed remuneration
includes base salary, superannuation and any applicable fringe benefits. Variable remuneration may include
short term and long term incentive payments which are typically cash and/or share-based and contingent
on achieving share price and/or performance hurdles.

In recognition of the Company’s operating performance, the Board did not to grant any increase in the base
salary to the Executives and KMP for the financial year. No variable remuneration, either short term or long
term incentives, was granted to Executives and KMP during the financial year.
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3.

Remuneration of Directors and Key Management Personnel

The following tables show details of the remuneration received by Directors and KMP of the Company for
the current and previous financial year.

Post- Share
Short Term based
employment
payment
Base Non-
Salaryand | Monetary Other Super- Amortised Remuneration
Fees Benefits Benefits annuation Value Total at risk
2016 - Directors $ $ $ $ $ $ %
Wehby, Anthony 90,000 - - 8,550 - 98,550 0%
Kairaitis, Rimas (i) 319,734 32,436 - 31,139 - 383,309 0%
Comb, Gary 50,000 - - 4,750 - 54,750 0%
Espie, Paul 50,000 - - - - 50,000 0%
Menzies, Mike (ii) 27,329 - - - - 27,329 0%
Milazzo, Mark (iii) 50,000 - - 4,750 - 54,750 0%
Symann, Rune (ii) 25,846 - - - - 25,846 0%
2016 - Executives
Churcher, Timothy 312,454 14,499 - 26,996 - 353,949 0%
Willson, Richard 150,000 - - 14,250 5,724 169,974 3%
Total 2016 1,075,363 46,934 - 90,435 5,724 | 1,218,456 0%
(i) Resigned as Managing Director 2 August 2015
(i) Appointed 15 December 2015
(iii) Resigned 27 June 2016
Share
Short Term Post- based
employment
payment
Base Non-
Salaryand | Monetary Other Super- Amortised Remuneration
Fees Benefits Benefits annuation Value Total at risk
2015 - Directors
Wehby, Anthony 75,000 - - 7125 9,563 91,688 10%
Kairaitis, Rimas 322,329 34,733 - 28,541 9,563 395,166 2%
Comb, Gary 50,000 - - 4,750 7,969 62,719 13%
Espie, Paul 50,000 - - - - 50,000 0%
Menzies, Mike v) 49,450 - - - - 49,450 0%
Milazzo, Mark 50,000 - - 4,750 7,969 62,719 13%
Zhang, Guoging 18,390 - - 1,747 20,137 0%
2015 - Executives -
Churcher, Timothy  (iv) 205,474 5,957 - 19,520 - 230,951 0%
Willson, Richard 206,521 - 68,188 26,097 27,320 328,126 8%
Fredericksen, Dean (vi) 280,299 19,595 147,597 26,629 48,533 522,653 9%
Pearce, Sean (vi) 233,465 12,858 | 155,643 22,179 44533 | 468678 10%
Total 2015 1,540,928 73,143 | 371,428 141,338 155,450 | 2,282,287 7%

(iv) Commenced employment on 29 September 2014

(v) Resigned 29 June 2015

(vi) Terminated employment 30 June 2015
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Executives are employed under executive employment agreements with the Company. The key terms of
these agreements with the Executives during the year are outlined below:

Notice Notice
Total Fixed period by period by Termination

Executive Remuneration Executive Company Benefit
Rimas Kairaitis Ac.crued e.ntitlements
Chief Executive Officer $358,886(" 3 months 3 months With notice served: 9 months TFR

Without notice: 12 months TFR at AMI’s election
Timothy Churcher Ac.crued gntitlements
Chief Executive Officer $339,4500 3 months 3 months With notice served: 9 months TFR

Without notice: 12 months TFR at AMI’s election

. . Accrued entitlements

,élg:qa;:n\;/\/lslfciztary $164,250 3 months 3 months With notice served: 9 months TFR

Without notice: 12 months TFR at AMI’s election

 Mr Kairaitis and Mr Churcher are entitled to the private use of a company motor vehicle as part of their remuneration package

4. Long Term Incentive Plans

The Company had two long term incentive plans active during the financial year, one relating to Director
Options and one relating to Employee Performance Rights Plans.

4.1. 2012 Directors Options (ESOP)
On 29 November 2012, the Company issued two series of Director Options:

Series 1: 1,850,000 options exercisable at $0.35/share, with an expiry date of 29 November 2015.
Series 2: 1,850,000 options exercisable at $0.45/share, with an expiry date of 29 November 2015.

All outstanding Director Options expired on 29 November 2015 unexercised, to give a nil balance at year
end. The movement in options over ordinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each
Director and KMP, are set out below.

The movement in options issued to Executives in the prior financial year relate to earlier option issues that
are no longer in operation.

Balance at the Granted during Exercised during Expired during Balance at year
2016 the year as

start of the year . the year the year end

compensation

Directors
Wehby, Anthony 600,000 - - {600,000) -
Comb, Gary 500,000 - - (500,000) -
Espie, Paul - - - - -
Menzies, Mike - - - - -
Milazzo, Mark 500,000 - - (500,000) -
Symann, Rune - - - - -
Executives
Kairaitis, Rimas 600,000 - - {600,000) -
Churcher, Timothy - - - - -
Willson, Richard - - - - -

2,200,000 - - (2,200,000) -

AURELIA METALS LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2016



aurelia

METALS Ltd.
Balance at the Granted during Exercised during Expired during Balance at year
2015 the year as
start of the year . the year the year end
compensation
Directors
Wehby, Anthony 600,000 - - - 600,000
Comb, Gary 500,000 - - - 500,000
Espie, Paul - - - -
Menzies, Mike - - - -
Milazzo, Mark 500,000 - - - 500,000
Zhang, Guoqing - - - -
Chen, Yong - - -
Corlett, Susan - - -
Executives
Kairaitis, Rimas 600,000 - - - 600,000
Churcher, Timothy - - - - -
Fredericksen, Dean 340,000 - - (340,000)
Pearce, Sean 500,000 - - (500,000)
Willson, Richard 100,000 - - (100,000) -
3,140,000 - - (940,000) 2,200,000

4.2. Employee Performance Rights Plans
Two Performance Rights Issues were in existence during the year.
(a) 2012 Employee Performance Rights (2012 PR)

On 15 March 2012, the Company granted 840,0000 Performance Rights to various employees. These
Performance Rights were structured to vest if the Company’s share price achieved a 5-day VWAP of
$0.80/share by 15 March 2016. All Performance Rights expired unvested on 15 March 2016.

(b) 2015 Class C Employee Performance Rights (2015 Class C)

On the 9 February 2015, the Company granted 490,000 Performance Rights to various employees. These
Performance Rights were structured to vest if the Company’s share price achieved a 5-day VWAP of
$0.40/share by 9 February 2018. These rights remain untested with 200,000 unvested Performance Rights
remaining in existence at year end.

Performance Rights Issued in prior years, of which there remains unexercised performance rights, are:
(c) 2013 Class A Employee Performance Rights (2013 Class A)

On the 12 April 2013, the Company granted 595,000 Performance Rights to various employees. These
Performance Rights were structured to vest if the Company’s share price achieved a 5-day VWAP of
$0.40/share by 12 April 2016. The price hurdle was achieved on 2 February 2015 and a total of 445,000
Performance Rights vested on that date. A total of 375,000 Performance Rights were subsequently
exercised and converted to shares. There remains 70,000 unexercised performance rights associated with
this issue.

(d) 2013 Class B Employee Performance Rights (2013 Class B)

On the 12 April 2013, the Company granted 1,075,000 Performance Rights to various employees. These
Performance Rights were structured to vest if the Company achieved certain operating performance vesting
conditions by 31 December 2013. The Board assessed an 80% vesting amount and 869,000 Performance
Rights vested on 31 December 2013. A total of 805,000 Performance Rights were subsequently exercised
and converted to shares. There remains 64,000 unexercised performance rights associated with this issue.
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(e) 2015 Class D Employee Performance Rights (2015 Class D)

On the 9 February 2015, the Company granted 1,240,000 Performance Rights to various employees. These
Performance Rights were structured to vest if the Company achieved certain operating performance vesting

conditions by 31 December 2014. The Board assessed a 60% vesting amount and 774,000 Performance
Rights vested on 31 December 2014. A total of 696,000 Performance Rights were subsequently exercised
and converted to shares. There remains 48,000 unexercised performance rights associated with this issue.

A summary of movements of Performance Rights within the various plans are tabulated below.

Balance at start | Granted during Exercised Expired during Balance at Exercisable at

2016 of year the year | During the year the year year end year end
Number Number Number Number Number Number

2012 PR 570,000 - - (570,000) - -
2013 Class A 70,000 - - - 70,000 70,000
2013 Class B 64,000 - - - 64,000 64,000
2015 Class C 380,000 - - (180,000) 200,000 -
2015 Class D 48,000 - - - 48,000 48,000
Total 1,132,000 - - (750,000) 382,000 182,000
Balance at start | Granted during Exercised Expired during Balance at Exercisable at

2015 of year the year | During the year the year year end year end
Number Number Number Number Number Number

2012 PR 700,000 - - (130,000) 570,000 -
2013 Class A 465,000 - (375,000) (20,000) 70,000 70,000
2013 Class B 189,000 - {125,000) - 64,000 64,000
2015 Class C - 490,000 - (110,000) 380,000 -
2015 Class D - 1,240,000 (696,000) (496,000) 48,000 48,000
Total 1,354,000 1,730,000 (1,196,000) (756,000) 1,132,000 182,000

The numbers of performance rights held during the financial year by each director, executive and key
management personnel of Aurelia Metals Limited and specified executive of the Group, including their
personally related parties, are set out below.

Granted during

Balance at the

Exercised during

Expired during

Balance at year

2016 start of the year the year ?S the year the year end
compensation
Executives
Kairaitis, Rimas 250,000 - - (250,000) -
Churcher, Timothy - - - - -
Willson, Richard 100,000 - - (50,000) 50,000
350,000 - - (300,000) 50,000

Balance at the

Granted during

Exercised during

Expired during

Balance at year

2015 start of the year the year e?s the year the year end
compensation
Executives
Kairaitis, Rimas 250,000 - - - 250,000
Churcher, Timothy - - - - -
Fredericksen, Dean 160,000 250,000 (200,000) (210,000) -
Pearce, Sean 195,000 220,000 (265,000) (150,000) -
Willson, Richard 50,000 150,000 (60,000) (40,000) 100,000
655,000 620,000 (525,000) (400,000) 350,000
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5. Shareholdings of Directors and Key Management Personnel

The shareholdings of Directors and KMPs presented below include shares held directly, indirectly, and
beneficially by the Directors and other KMPs.

Balance at the Granted during On Exercise of Other changes Balance at year
2016 the year as : .
start of the year . share options during the year end
compensation
Directors
Wehby, Anthony 978,125 - - - 978,125
Comb, Gary 281,250 - - - 281,250
Espie, Paul - - - - -
Menzies, Mike 112,500 - - - 112,500
Milazzo, Mark 225,000 - - - 225,000
Symann, Rune - - - - -
Executives
Kairaitis, Rimas 4,473,544 - - - 4,473,544
Churcher, Timothy - - - - -
Willson, Richard 180,000 - - - 180,000
6,250,419 - - - 6,250,419
Balance at the Granted during On Exercise of Other changes Balance at year
2015 the year as : .
start of the year . share options during the year end
compensation
Directors
Wehby, Anthony 845,000 - - 133,125 978,125
Comb, Gary 250,000 - - 31,250 281,250
Espie, Paul - - - - -
Menzies, Mike 100,000 - - 12,500 112,500
Milazzo, Mark 200,000 - - 25,000 225,000
Zhang, Guoqing - - - - -
Chen, Yong - - - - -
Corlett, Susan - - - - -
Executives
Kairaitis, Rimas 4,468,544 - - 5,000 4,473,544
Churcher, Timothy - - - - -
Willson, Richard 37,574 - 60,000 82,426 180,000
5,901,118 - 60,000 289,301 6,250,419

All equity transactions with KMPs other than those arising from exercise of remuneration options and
performance rights have been entered into under terms and agreements no more favourable than those the
Company would have adopted if dealing at arm’s length.
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES

During the year the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young Australia provided non-audit services. The directors
are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of
independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The nature and scope of each type of
non-audit service provided means that auditor independence was not compromised.

The amounts received or due to be received by Ernst & Young Australia for non-audit services are contained
in Note 21.

On 8 July 2015 the Board resolved that in accordance with Section 324DAA of the Corporations Act 2001,
and the recommendation of the Audit Committee, Mr Ryan Fisk’s rotation period as Audit Lead Partner be
extended for two years to 30 June 2017. The directors are satisfied that the extension is consistent with
maintaining independence, the preservation of knowledge on the engagement, the quality of the audit
provided to the Company, and would not give rise to a conflict of interest.

The Company has obtained an independence declaration from its auditor, Ernst and Young, which forms
part of this report. A copy of that declaration is included on the following page.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resoluticn of the Directors.

Mr Anthony Wehby
Non-Executive Chairman

16 September 2016
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Ernst & Young Tel: +61 2 9248 5555
200 George Street Fax: +61 2 9248 5959
Sydney NSW 2000 Australia ey.com/au

e GPO Box 2646 Sydney NSW 2001
Building a better
working world

Auditor’'s Independence Declaration to the Directors of Aurelia Metals
Limited

As lead auditor for the audit of Aurelia Metals Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2016, |
declare to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the review.

This declaration is in respect of Aurelia Metals Limited and the entities it controlled during the financial
period.
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Ernst & Young

Ryan Fisk
Partner
16 September 2016

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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METALS Ltd.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2016
Note 2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Operating sales revenue 3(a) 91,945 13,220
Cost of sales 3(b) (78,771) (26,445)
Gross profit 13,174 (13,225)
Corporate administration expenses 3(c) (4,935) (4,194)
Gain/(Loss) on debt restructure 3.1 10,203 -
Share based expenses 3(d) (973) (163)
Exploration and evaluation costs written off 9 (174) (3,347)
Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets 9 - (17,884)
Impairment of mine properties 10 - (75,031)
Gain/(Loss) on commodity derivatives (92) (1,675)
Gain/(Loss) on revaluation of investments 3(e) 205 (287)
Other income/(expenses) 3(f) 61 25
Profit/(Loss) before interest and income tax 17,469 (115,782)
Finance income 223 280
Finance costs 3(g) (6,749) (2,656)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax 10,943 (118,158)
Income tax expense 4 - -
Profit/(Loss) after income tax 10,943 (118,158)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total Comprehensive Profit/(Loss) for the year 10,943 (118,158)
Earnings per share for Profit/(Loss) attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent
Basic Profit/(Loss) per share (cents per share) 20 2.8 (33.0)
Diluted Profit/(Loss) per share (cents per share) 20 2.4 (33.0)

The above Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

All amounts in this Financial Report are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, except where indicated otherwise.
Due to rounding, numbers presented throughout this document may not add up precisely to the totals provided.
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Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2016
Note 2016 2015
$'000 $'000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17(b) 21,595 4,848
Trade and other receivables 5 3,400 6,185
Inventories 6 5,445 2,693
Prepayments 358 145
Total current assets 30,798 13,870
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 50,508 57,459
Financial Assets 8 477 273
Exploration and Evaluation Assets 9 106 116
Mine Properties 10 30,006 33,307
Total non- current assets 81,097 91,155
Total assets 111,895 105,025
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 11 5,791 16,395
Provisions 12 2,590 1,886
Borrowings 13 329 22,737
Total current liabilities 8,709 41,017
Non-current Liabilities
Provisions 12 14,008 7,856
Borrowings 13 113,025 91,915
Total non - current liabilities 127,032 99,771
Total liabilities 135,742 140,789
Net assets/(liabilities) (23,847) (35,764)
EQUITY
Contributed Equity 14 99,929 99,929
Reserves 15 4,034 3,061
Retained losses 16 (127,810) (138,753)
Total equity (23,847) (35,764)

The above Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
All amounts in the Financial Report are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, except where indicated otherwise.
Due to rounding, numbers presented throughout this document may not add up precisely to the totals provided.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 June 2016

Not
e

Balance at 1 July 2014

Total Profit/(Loss) for the period
Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners

Shares issued for the period

Cost of share issue

Share based payments

Balance at 30 June 2015

Balance at 1 July 2015

Total Profit/(Loss) for the period
Transactions with owners

in their capacity as owners
Shares issued for the period
Cost of share issue

Share based payments

Balance at 30 June 2016 14,15

aurelia

METALS Ltd.
Share
Issued Based
Share Payments Accumulated

Capital Reserve Losses Total
$000's $000's $000's $000's
85,361 2,897 (20,595) 67,664
- - (118,158) (118,158)
15,283 - - 15,283
(715) - - (715)
- 163 - 163
99,929 3,061 (138,753) (35,764)
99,929 3,061 (138,753) (35,764)
- - 10,943 10,943
973 973
99,929 4,034 (127,810) (23,847)

The above Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

All amounts in this Financial Report are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, except where indicated otherwise.
Due to rounding, numbers presented throughout this document may not add up precisely to the totals provided.
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2016
Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees
Research and development refund
Interest received

Interest paid

Receipt from close out of gold hedge
Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Exploration & evaluation expenditure
Mine capital expenditure

Profit /(loss) on exchange and derivatives
Receipts from pre-production sales
Receipts from sale of gold put options
Deferred acquisition (Hera Royalty)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares
Repayment of Glencore loans
Drawdown of Glencore loans
Repayment of other borrowings

Share Issue costs

Other finance costs - taxes, facility fees

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The above Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2016 2015
$000's $000's
94,750 8,207
(71,182) (12,045)
0 85

238 355
(441) (150)

- 388
23,365 (3,160)
(4,221) (658)
- 31

(164) (2,450)
(4,591) (43,128)
106 -

- 19,595

- 1,120
(1,214) (212)
(10,083) (25,702)
- 13,283
(13,500) .
18,500 -
(886) (398)

i (727)

(648) (40)
3,465 12,118
16,747 (16,743)
4,848 21,591
21,595 4,848

(a) Interest paid in 2015 of $0.150 million has been reclassified in this cash flow statement from Financing Activities

to Operating Activities

(b) Payments to suppliers and employees is displayed inclusive of GST in the 2016 Statement of Cash Flow and
exclusive in the 2015 Statement of Cash Flows (2015 now restated for comparative purposes)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial report of Aurelia Metals Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 30 June 2016 was
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 16 September 2016.

Aurelia Metals Limited is a company limited by shares incorporated in Australia whose shares are publicly
traded on the Australian Stock Exchange. The Company is a for-profit entity.

Aurelia Metals has four 100% owned subsidiaries, Stannum Pty Ltd (incorporated 15 September 2007),
Defiance Resources Pty Ltd (incorporated 15 May 2007), Hera Resources Pty Ltd (incorporated
20 August 2009) and Nymagee Resources Pty Ltd (incorporated 7 November 2011).

The current nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group are gold, lead and zinc production
and mineral exploration.

2A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been adopted by Aurelia Metals Limited are as follows:
(a) Basis of preparation

The financial report is a general-purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Corporations Act 2007, the Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. The financial report has been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except deferred acquisition costs which are measured at fair value.

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars, which is the functional currency of the Company.
(i) Going concern

The financial report has been prepared on the going concern basis which contemplates the continuity of
normal business activities and the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the ordinary
course of business.

For the full year ended 30 June 2016, the Group reported a net profit of $10.943 million (2015: net loss of
$118.158 million) and net operating cash inflows of $23.365 million (2015: outflows of $3.160 million). At
30 June 2016, the Group is in a net current asset position of $22.089 million (2015: net current liability
position of $27.147 million) and net total liability position of $23.847 million (2015: net liability of $35.764
million).

The improvement in the net liability position during the year reflects the restructured loan arrangements
with the Company’s main financiers and improved operating performance during 2016.

The Company believes that the new debt agreement with the Company’s main financier, which includes a
deferral of debt obligations and the ability to convert a significant portion of debt into equity (see
Operations and Finance Review Section 2.7), combined with improved operating performance and generally
positive commodity price environment will enable the business to continue to improve its net liability
position and support the going concern basis upon which these financial statements are prepared.

(ii) Debt Restructure

On 1 April 2016, the Company concluded a major restructure of its secured borrowings with Glencore. The
restructuring resulted in certain changes to the loan terms of all facilities, including the extension of the
maturity dates, the introduction of a two-year interest free and debt amortisation free period and partial
repayment of Facility A with the drawdown of a new facility (Facility F). For details see the Operations and
Finance Review and Note 13.
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(b) Compliance with IFRS

The Financial Report complies with Australian Accounting Standards as issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board and International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board.

(c) New accounting standards and interpretations
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that the
Group has adopted new and amended Australian Accounting Standards and AASB interpretations where
applicable from 1 July 2015, which were assessed to have no material impact on the Company, as follows:

. Application date | Application date
Reference Title of standard for Group
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
AASB 2013-9 Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial 1January 2015 1]July 2015
Instruments
AASB 2015-3 Amenfin”.lents relating to withdrawal of AASB 1031 1January 2015 1)uly 2015
Materiality

(d) Accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

The following table sets out new Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet mandatory and which have not been early adopted by the Company for the annual reporting
period ending 30 June 2016. The Company is the process of assessing the impact of the new standards.

. Application date | Application date
Reference Title of standard for Group
AASB 16 Leases 1January 2019 1]July 2019
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1January 2018 1]July 2018

All other new Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective are not
expected to have a material impact on the group.

(e) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Aurelia Metals Limited and its
subsidiaries (as outlined in Note 1).

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the
Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

e Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

e The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
e The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
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statement of comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany balances and
transactions, income and expenses and profit and losses resulting from intra-group transactions, have been
eliminated in full.

(f) Foreign Currency
Functional and Presentation Currency

Both the functional and presentation currency of Aurelia Metals Limited and its controlled entities is
Australian Dollars ($ or AS).

Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded in the foreign currency at the exchange rates ruling at
the date of transaction. The subsequent payment of receipt of funds related to a transaction is translated at
the rate applicable on the date of payment or receipt. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All exchange differences in
the consolidated financial statements are taken to the Income Statement as gain or loss on exchange.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of six months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are included within interest-bearing
loans and borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

(h) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables comprising base metal concentrates and gold bullion awaiting settlement are initially
recorded at the fair value of contracted sale proceeds expected to be received only when there has been a
passing of significant risks and awards of ownership to the customer. Collectability of debtors is reviewed on
an ongoing basis.

An estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts
are written off when identified.

Other collectables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any
uncollectible amounts.

(i) Inventories / Materials on hand

Gold bullion, metal in concentrate, metal in circuit and ore stockpiles are physically measured or estimated
and valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated future sales
price of the product the entity expects to realise when the product is processed and sold, less estimated
costs to complete production and bring the product to sale. Where the time value of money is material,
these future prices and costs to complete are discounted. Until mine properties are in production, any
differences in cost and net realisable value are capitalised to the respective asset in development.

If the ore stockpile is not expected to be processed in 12 months after the reporting date, it is included in
non-current assets and the net realisable value is calculated on a discounted cash flow basis.

Cost is determined by using the weighted-average method and comprises direct purchase costs and an
appropriate portion of fixed and variable overhead costs, including depreciation and amortisation, incurred
in converting materials into finished goods, based on the normal production capacity. The cost of
production is allocated to joint products using a ratio of spot prices by volume at each month end.
Separately identifiable costs of conversion of each metal are specifically allocated.

AURELIA METALS LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2016



aurelia

2

METALS Ltd.

Materials and supplies on hand are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Any provision for
obsolescence is determined by reference to specific items of stock. A regular review is undertaken to
determine the extent of any provision for obsolescence.

(j) Property, Plant and Equipment and Mine Properties

Items of property, plant and equipment and producing mines are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation, amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Initial recognition

The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset into operation, the initial estimate of the rehabilitation obligation, and, for qualifying
assets (where relevant), borrowing costs. The purchase price or construction cost is the aggregate amount
paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset. The capitalised value of a
finance lease is also included in property, plant and equipment.

Mine properties also consist of the fair value attributable to mineral reserves and the portion of mineral
resources considered to be probable of economic extraction at the time of an acquisition. When a mine
construction project moves into the production phase, the capitalisation of certain mine construction costs
ceases, and costs are either regarded as part of the cost of inventory or expensed, except for costs which
qualify for capitalisation relating to mining asset additions, improvements or new developments,
underground mine development or mineable reserve development.

Depreciation/amortisation

Accumulated mine development costs are depreciated/amortised on a unit-of-production basis over the
economically recoverable reserves and the portion of mineral resources considered to be probable of
economic extraction, except in the case of assets whose useful life is shorter than the life of the mine, in
which case the straight-line method is applied. The unit of account for run of mines (ROM) costs is Gold
Metal Equivalent units mined (measured in ounces), whereas the unit of account for post-ROM costs is Gold
Metal Equivalent units processed (measured in ounces). Rights and concessions are depleted on the unit-of-
production (UOP) basis over the economically recoverable reserves of the relevant area. The unit-of-
production rate calculation for the depreciation/amortisation of mine development costs takes into account
expenditures incurred to date, together with planned future development expenditure.

The estimated fair value attributable to the mineral reserves and the portion of mineral resources
considered to be probable of economic extraction at the time of the acquisition is amortised on a UOP basis
whereby the denominator is the proven and probable reserves and the portion of resources expected to be
extracted economically. The estimated fair value of the mineral resources that are not considered to be
probable of economic extraction at the time of the acquisition is not subject to amortisation, until the
resource becomes probable of economic extraction in the future and is recognised in exploration and
evaluation assets.

Other plant and equipment, is calculated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

e Plant and equipment over three to five years

e land - not depreciated

e Motor vehicles - three to five years

e Leasehold improvements — three to five years
Impairment

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. If any indication of impairment exists and where
the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating units are
written down to their recoverable amount.
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The recoverable amount of plant and equipment is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset.

Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in the income statement.

Derecognition

Items of property, plant and equipment and producing mines are derecognised upon disposal or when no
further future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

(k) Recoverable amount of assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. Where an indicator of impairment exists, the Company makes a formal estimate of recoverable
amount. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. It is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset's value in use cannot be estimated to be close to its fair value less costs to
sell and it does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset.

() Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Expenditure on acquisition, exploration and evaluation relating to an area of interest is carried forward
where rights to tenure of the area of interest are current and;

e |tis expected that expenditure will be recouped through successful development and exploitation
of the area of interest or alternatively by its sale and/or;

e Exploration and evaluation activities are continuing in an area of interest but at balance date have
not yet reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment of the existence or otherwise of
economically recoverable reserves.

If facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of any recognised exploration and evaluation
assets may be impaired, the entity must perform impairment tests on those assets in accordance with AASB
136 ‘Impairment of Assets’. Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets is to be assessed at a cash
generating unit or group of cash generating units level provided this is no larger than an area of interest.
Any impairment loss is to be recognised as an expense in accordance with AASB 136. Accumulated costsin
relation to an abandoned area are written off to the income statement in the period in which the decision to
abandon the area is made.

Mines under construction

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting a mineral resource have been
demonstrated then any capitalised exploration and evaluation expenditure is reclassified as capitalised
‘Mine properties under construction ’. Prior to reclassification, capitalised exploration and evaluation
expenditure is assessed for impairment.

Producing mines

Upon completion of the mine construction phase, assets are transferred into ‘Property, Plant and
Equipment’ or ‘Mine Properties’.
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(m) Trade and other payables

Trade payables and other payables are carried at amortised cost. They represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the
Company becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

(n) Provisions and employee benefits

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any
provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave, long service leave and
accumulating sick leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in
respect of employee’s services up to the reporting date. They are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled. Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the
leave is taken and are measured at the rates paid or payable.

(o) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or
assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Finance leases that transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item
to the Group, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter
of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

(p) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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(q) Income recognition

Income, including management fees, is recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the income can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before
income can be recognised:

Gold and Silver Bullion Sales

Revenue from gold and silver bullion sales is brought to account when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have transferred to the buyer and selling prices are known or can be reasonably estimated.

Zinc, Lead and Silver in Concentrate Sales

The terms of metal in concentrate sales contracts with third parties contain provisional pricing
arrangements whereby the selling price for metal in concentrate is based on prevailing spot prices on a
specified future date after shipment to the customer (quotation period). Adjustments to the sales price
occur based on movements in quoted market prices up to the date of final settlement. The period between
provisional invoicing and final settlement is typically between one and three months.

Interest

Income is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the
effective interest rate. This is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

(r) Share-based payment transactions

The Company provides benefits to employees (including directors) in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (‘equity-
settled transactions’).

The cost of these equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an internal valuation using the Black
Scholes model or Trinomial Barrier Option model.

In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of Aurelia ('market conditions’).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (‘vesting date’).

The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until vesting date
reflects (i) the extent to which the vesting period has expired and (ii) the number of awards that, in the
opinion of the Directors of the Company, will ultimately vest. This opinion is formed based on the best
available information at balance date. No adjustment is made for the likelihood of market performance
conditions being met as the effect of these conditions is included in the determination of fair value at grant
date.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is
conditional upon a market condition.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the
terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any increase in the value of the
transaction as a result of the modification, as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and
any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new award are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in
the previous paragraph.
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The dilutive effect, if any, of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of earnings per share.

(s) Income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the current period’s taxable income. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences:

e  Except where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused
tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax
losses can be utilised:

e  Except where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

¢ Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Income taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity are recognised in equity and not in the income
statement.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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(t) Other taxes
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

e  Where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

e Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a net basis and the GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority are classified as operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the taxation authority.

(u) Contributed equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown directly in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from proceeds.

(v) Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of an entity that engages in business activities from which it may earn
income and incur expenses (including income and expenses relating to transactions with other components
of the same entity), whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision
maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for
which discrete financial information is available. This includes start up operations which are yet to earn
income. Management will also consider other factors in determining operating segments such as the
existence of a line manager and the level of segment information presented to the Board of Directors.

Operating segments have been identified based on the information provided to the chief operating decision
makers — being the executive management team.

The group aggregates two or more operating segments when they have similar economic characteristics,
and the segments are similar in each of the following respects:

Nature of the products and services

Nature of the production processes

Type or class of customer for the products and services

Methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and if applicable
Nature of the regulatory environment.

Operating segments that meet the quantitative criteria as prescribed by AASB 8 are reported separately.
However, an operating segment that does not meet the quantitative criteria is still reported separately
where information about the segment would be useful to users of the financial statements. Information
about other business activities and operating segments that are below the quantitative criteria are
combined and disclosed in a separate category for ‘all other segments’.

(w) Profit/(loss) per share
Basic profit/(loss) per share

Basic profit / (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) attributable to equity holders of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than dividends, by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus elements.
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Diluted profit/(loss) per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated as net profit / (loss) attributable to members of the Company,
adjusted for:

e  Costs of servicing equity (other than dividends);

e The after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that
have been recognised as expenses; and

e  Other non-discretionary changes in income or expenses during the period that would result from
the dilution of potential ordinary shares;

divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted
for any bonus elements.

(x) Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets

Investments and financial assets in the scope of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are categorised as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or originated. Designation is re-evaluated at each
reporting date, but there are restrictions on reclassifying to other categories.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of assets not
at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Recognition and de-recognition

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e., the date that the
Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets under contracts that require delivery of the assets within the period established generally by
regulation or convention in the market place. Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive
cash flows from the financial assets has expired or when the entity transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of the financial assets. If the entity neither retains nor transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards, it derecognises the asset if it has transferred control of the assets.

Subsequent valuation

After initial recognition, the Group measures financial assets, including derivatives that are assets, at their
fair values, without any deduction for transaction costs it may incur on sale or other disposal, except for the
following financial assets:

e Loans and receivables as defined in paragraph, which shall be measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method;

e Held-to-maturity investments as defined in paragraph, which shall be measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method; and

e Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, which shall be measured at cost.

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.
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(i) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group’s financial liabilities may include trade
and other payables, loans and borrowings, including bank overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired or incurred for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by AASB 139.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in AASB 139 are satisfied. The Group has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings. For more information, refer Note
13.

De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

(iii) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

(y) Comparative information

Where necessary, the prior year financial data was restated for comparability purposes.
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2B.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements.

Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent
liabilities, income and expenses. Management bases its judgements and estimates on historical experience
and on various other factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form
the basis of the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

Management has identified the following critical accounting policies for which significant judgements,
estimates and assumptions are made. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions and conditions and may materially affect financial results or the financial position reported in
future periods.

(a) Significant accounting judgements
(i) Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Exploration and evaluation expenditure is capitalised when either, costs are expected to be recouped
through successful development and exploitation of the area of interest; or alternatively by its sale: or
exploration and/or evaluation activities in the area have not reached a stage which permits a reasonable
assessment of the existence or otherwise of economically recoverable reserves. Costs incurred on mining
tenements are allocated to specific geological structures within the mining tenement. Where specific
geological structures within tenement are yet to be identified, the costs are allocated across the entire
tenement on a proportional basis. In determining this, assumptions, including the maintenance of title,
ongoing expenditure and prospectivity are made and in the event that these assumptions no longer hold
valid then this expenditure may, in part or full, be expensed through the income statement in future periods
- see Note 9 for disclosure of carrying values.

(b) Significant accounting estimates and assumptions
(i) Share-based payment transactions

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees and third parties by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is
determined by using a Black-Scholes or Trinomial Barrier Option Model formula taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted. The accounting estimates and assumptions
relating to equity-settled share-based payments would have no impact on the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next annual reporting period but may impact expenses and equity.

(ii) Deferred acquisition costs in relation to Hera

The Company measures the deferred acquisition costs by reference to the fair value of net present value of
future cash outflows. The following assumptions have been taken into account: risk free bond rate, gold
price, timing and possibility of payment.

(iii) Fair Value of Debt

The Company is required under accounting standards to account for an exchange between borrower and
lender with 'substantially different’ terms as an extinguishment of the original facility and the recognition of
a new financial liability. It is noted that there is significant judgement in determining the fair value of
borrowings. Refer to Note 3.1 Significant Items for further detail on the fair value of debt.

(iv) Unit of Production Method of Depreciation/Amortisation

The Company uses the unit-of production basis where depreciating/amortising specific assets which results
in a depreciation/amortisation charge proportional to the depletion of the anticipated remaining life of mine
production. Each item’s economic life, which is assessed annually, has due regard to both its physical life
limitations and to present assessments of economically recoverable reserves of the mine property at which
it is located. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions.
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Effective 1 January 2016, a change in estimate was made in regards to the units of production measure from
ore tonnes mined/processed to gold equivalent metal mined/processed. This change was made to more
accurately reflect the pattern of consumption of the high-grade polymetallic Hera orebody.

This change increased the cost of sales depreciation in the year by $6.170 million. The impact of the change
in estimate on future years is not practical to determine.

(v) Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses each Cash-Generating Unit (GGU), annually to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment or reversal. Where an indicator of impairment or reversal exists, a formal estimate
of the recoverable amount is made, which is deemed as being the higher of the fair value costs of disposal
and value in use calculated in accordance with accounting policy Note 2(j). These assessments require the
use of estimates and assumptions such as discount rates, exchange rates, commodity prices, gold multiple
values, future operating development and sustaining capital requirements and operating performance.

(vi) Rehabilitation

The Group makes full provision for the future cost of rehabilitating the Hera mine site and related
production facilities at the time of developing the mine and installing and using those facilities. The
rehabilitation provision represents the present value of rehabilitation costs relating to mine sites, which are
expected to be incurred up to July 2020. These provisions have been created based on Aurelia’s internal
estimates. Assumptions based on the current economic environment have been made, which management
believes are a reasonable basis upon which to estimate the future liability. These estimates are reviewed
regularly to take into account any material changes to the assumptions. However, actual rehabilitation
costs will ultimately depend upon future market prices for the necessary rehabilitation works required that
will reflect market conditions at the relevant time. Furthermore, the timing of rehabilitation is likely to
depend on when the mine ceases to produce at economically viable rates. This, in turn, will depend upon
future gold, lead and zinc prices, which are inherently uncertain.

3. REVENUE AND EXPENSES

Profit before income tax includes the following revenues, income and expenses whose disclosure is
relevant in explaining the performance of the Group:

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
(a) Operating sales revenue
Gold 75,007 6,187
Base metal concentrate 16,418 6,988
Silver 519 46
Total operating sales revenue 91,945 13,220
(b) Cost of sales
Site production costs 51,264 13,161
Transport and refining 4,618 1,368
Royalty 1,634 81
Inventory movement (2170) 5,381
55,346 19,992
Depreciation and amortisation 23,425 6,453
Total cost of sales 78,771 26,445
(c) Corporate administration costs
Corporate costs 4,691 3,988
Corporate depreciation 244 206
Total corporate administration costs 4,935 4,194
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(d) Share based expenses
Share based payments expense - employees
Share based payments expense - other (i)

Total share based expenses

(i) Relates to share options issued to Pybar, Pacific Road and Glencore.

(e) Gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets
Gain/(Loss) on revaluation of shares held
Gain/(Loss) on revaluation of options held

(f) Other income/(expenses)
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of plant and equipment
Sundry income

Total other income/(expenses)

(g) Finance costs

Interest expense

Finance charge on FV debt adjustment
Withholding tax incurred on borrowings
Amortisation of capitalised borrowing costs
Unwind of discount - Rehabilitation provision

Total finance costs

(h) Depreciation and amortisation
Property, plant and equipment
Mine development

Less: Capitalised to mine under construction

Total depreciation and amortisation

Represented by:
Cost of sales depreciation
Corporate depreciation

Total depreciation and amortisation

(i) Employee benefits expense

Salaries, on-costs and other employee benefits
Superannuation expense

Share based payments expense - employees

Total employee benefits expense

(j) Other items
Operating lease rentals
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3.1.  Significant ltems

The Company is required under accounting standards to account for an exchange between borrower and
lender with ‘substantially different’ terms as an extinguishment of the original facility and the recognition of
a new financial liability. An assessment concluded that the restructure of the Company’s debt facilities with
Glencore were completed on substantially different terms and required the Company to derecognise the
existing liability and recognise the fair value of the new liability and the difference to be recognised in the
income statement.

At balance date, the Company has recognised the fair value of borrowings at $112.449 million. Refer to
Note 25.6 Fair Value, for disclosure on the judgements taken in determining the fair value of borrowings.

Significant items are those items where their nature or amount is considered material to the financial
report. Such items included within the consolidated results for the year are:

Note 2016 2015
$'000 $'000

(a) Movements in Glencore Debt Liability
Opening Balance of Glencore liability 13,(a) 112,865 104,479
Debt repaid during the year (b) (13,500) -
Debt drawn during the year (b) 18,500 -
Capitalisation of interest accrued during the year 2,804 7,413
Borrowing costs amortised during the year 3(g),(d) 753 974
New borrowing costs incurred prior to 31 March (20) -
New borrowing costs incurred in debt restructure (484) -
Interim Balance of Glencore liability at 31 March 2016 120,919 NA
Transactions under debt extinguishment
Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on debt at 1 April 2016 14,335 NA
Existing Borrowing costs expensed under extinguishment (3,648) NA
New Borrowing costs expensed () (484) NA
Net Gain/(Loss) on debt extinguishment at 1 April 2016 10,203 NA
Balances at 1 April after debt extinguishment
Glencore liability balance at 1 April 110,715 NA
Interest accrued to 30 June 2016 (e) (1,734) NA
Closing Liability Balance at 30 June 2016 13 112,449 112,865

Note: "NA" means prior year comparison is not applicable or relevant

() Prior year opening balances displayed in the 2014 Financial Statements of the Company

(b) Refer to Cash Flow Statement of this report

(c) Borrowing costs incurred during the year directly attributable to the formation of new debt facilities
{d) Of the $0.974 miillion borrowing costs in 2015, $0.243 million was expensed with the remainder
capitalised to mines under construction

(e) The difference in fair value of borrowings from 1 April to 30 June is expensed as an interest charge
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INCOME TAX

The Group is a tax consolidated group at balance date.

a) Income Tax Expense

Deferred Tax
Previously unrecognised tax loss now recognised
Income tax expense reported in the income statement

b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima
facie tax payable

Accounting profit/(loss) before income tax

Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30%

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in
calculating taxable income:

Share based payments and other non-assessable items
Previously unrecognised tax expense/(benefit) now recognised
Income tax expense

c) Deferred tax balances

Deferred Tax Assets

Carry forward losses not recognised
Provisions

Other

Total

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Temporary differences:
Fixed assets

Provisions

Other

Total

d) Deferred Tax Assets not recognised
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of:

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
(3,623) 5,485
3,623 (5,485)
10,943 (118,158)
3,283 (35,448)
(8,018) (176)
4,735 35,623
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
37,703 12,764
4,682 2,923
23,070 -
65,455 15,686
(17,801) (15,710)
(22,398) 24
(40,199) (15,686)

Revenue losses and temporary differences with a tax effect of $25.26 million.

e) Tax Losses

The Group has available tax losses of $125.68 million (2015 $77.43 million). These tax losses have not
been recognised due to the uncertainty of their recoverability in future periods.
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5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Trade debtors 2,724 5,312
GST receivable 656 838
Accrued interest 20 35
Closing balance 3,400 6,185
All of the above are non-interest bearing and generally receivable on 30-90 day terms. Due to the
short term nature their carrying value approximates their fair value.
As balance date, no material amount of trade receivables were past due or impaired.
6. INVENTORIES
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Stores inventory (materials on hand) 2,060 1,477
Ore stockpiles 641 24
Metal in circuit 92 515
Finished concentrate 1,569 472
Finished gold dore 1,083 205
Total current inventory 5,445 2,693
Allinventory is held at Cost (2015: Finished concentrate and Stores inventory were held at cost, all
other inventory held at Net Realisable Value). The result of the NRV/cost adjustment of inventories
has been recognised through cost of sales during the period.
7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Plant and equipment at cost 64,271 60,440
Property at cost (1) 275 275
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (14,038) (3,256)
Total property, plant and equipment 50,508 57,459
Movement in Property, Plant & Equipment
Opening balance 57,459 939
Additions/expenditure during the year 4,278 598
Reclassifications/transfers (2) - 58,182
Assets scrapped/written off (411)
Depreciation for the year (10,818) (2,252)
Disposals of assets - (8)
Closing balance 50,508 57,459

(1) Property assets include land only, are held at cost and are not depreciated.

(2) Represents reclassification/transfer from mines under development upon declaration of commercial
production.
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FINANCIAL ASSETS

2016 2015
Carrying value of financial assets $'000 $'000
Shares in Aus Tin Mining Limited (i) 477 273
Gold put options - -
477 273

(i) Movement in carrying value
Opening balance 273 205
Gain/(Loss) on revaluation 205 68
Closing balance 477 273

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
At cost 22,782 23,188
Accumulated write offs (22,676) (23,072)
Total exploration and evaluation assets 106 116
Opening balance 116 19,228
Expenditure during the year 174 2,119
Expenditure written off during the year (174) (3,347)
Impairment losses during the year - (17,884)
Disposal of assets (10) -
Closing balance 106 116

No impairment charge was recognised in 2016 (2015: $17.884 million).

The recoverability of the carrying amount of the deferred exploration and evaluation expenditure is
dependent on successful development and commercial exploitation, or alternatively the sale, of the

respective areas of interest.
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10. MINE PROPERTIES

2016 2015
$'000 $'000

Mines under construction:
Opening balance - 143,409
Development expenditure - 40,793
Change in deferred acquisition costs - (528)
Amortisation of loan establishment costs - 731
Interest on project borrowings - 6,019
Sales during commissioning - (22,801)
Treatment charges during commissioning - 3,341
- 170,964
Less: Transfers to property, plant and equipment - (58,182)
Less: Transfers to producing mines - (112,782)
Closing balance - -

Producing mines:

Opening balance 33,307 -
Transfers from mines under construction - 112,782
Impairment of mine properties - (75,031)
Mine assets scrapped 57 -
Development expenditure during the year 9,493 -
Amortisation for the year (12,851) (4,444)
Closing balance 30,006 33,307

10.1. Impairment losses

Impairment tests are performed when there are indicators for impairment. The Group conducts a review of
indicators for impairment at each reporting date. Indicators reviewed include, but are not limited to, the
operating performance of the CGU or Cash Generating Unit, future business plans, assumptions around
future commodity prices, exchange rates, production rates and production costs.

2016

A review of indicators for impairment was conducted at 30 June 2016. There were no indicators identified
that warranted a full impairment test at 30 June 2016.

2015

A comprehensive impairment review was conducted at 30 June 2015. As a result of the review, a total
impairment loss of $92,915,777 was recognised in year to 30 June 2015. The impairment charge to mine
properties was $75,031,403 and the impairment to Exploration and Evaluation Assets was $17,884,374.

Given the nature of the Company'’s activities, an assessment of Fair Value Less Cost of Disposal (FVLCD) for
each CGU was determined based on the net present value of the future estimated cash flows (expressed in
real terms) expected to be generated from the continued use of the CGUs (based on the most recent life of
mine plans), including any expansion projects, and its eventual disposal, using assumptions a market
participant may take into account. These cash flows were discounted using a real post-tax discount rate
that reflected current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.
The determination of FVLCD for each CGU uses Level 3 valuation techniques.

Inputs into the FVLCD calculation included: forecast payable production of approximately 196,000 oz gold,
57,000 tonnes of lead and 60,000 tonnes of zinc based on the Company'’s expanded life of mine plan; long
term commodity prices of US$1207/0z gold, $2000/t lead and US$2750/t zinc; average A$/US$ exchange
rate of 0.78; cash flows discounted using an after tax real discount rate of 10%.
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Mine properties: Total impairment losses of $75,031,403 were recognised in respect of the Hera CGU mine
property. The triggers for the impairment test were primarily the effect of recent operating experience,
which resulted in higher costs of extraction and lower than expected gold recovery relative to the feasibility
study estimates. The recoverable amount of Hera was based on management's estimate of FVLCD.

Exploration and evaluation (E&E) assets: Total impairment losses of $17,884,374 were recognised in respect
of Hera, Nymagee and regional exploration properties. The triggers for impairment of the Hera E & E asset
is related to the Hera CGU impairment, whereby increased forecast operating costs have rendered certain
inferred resource uneconomic and unlikely to be recoverable. At Nymagee, it was management's view that
the focus on improving performance at Hera meant that the timeline for development of Nymagee was
deferred to an indefinite future date. Management’s expectation that the book value of E&E assets at
Nymagee, together with smaller E&E assets in the regional exploration portfolio, will be recouped through
successful development was uncertain. As such, those assets were impaired to a nominal value representing
security deposits recoverable upon relinquishment of tenements.

1. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2016 2015

$'000 $'000

Trade payables 1,887 6,102
Accrued expenses 3,904 10,293
5791 16,395

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and generally payable on 7 to 30 day terms and due to the
short term nature of these payables their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value.

12. PROVISIONS

Deferred
Acquisition

2016 Rehabilitation Costs Employee Other Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Opening balance 1,516 7,683 543 - 9,742
Reclassification from
payables - - - 2,717 2,717
Re-measurement of
provision 829 4,091 610 893 6,423
Discount unwind charged to
Income Statement 40 - - - 40
Paid/utilised during the year - (1,214) (461) (648) (2,323)
Closing Balance 2,384 10,560 692 2,961 16,598
Comprising:
Current 2016 - 1,971 619 - 2,590
Non-current 2016 2,384 8,589 73 2,961 14,008
Total provisions 2016 2,384 10,560 692 2,961 16,598
Current 2015 - 1,382 503 - 1,886
Non-current 2015 1,516 6,301 39 - 7,856
Total provisions 2015 1,516 7,683 543 - 9,742
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On 1 April 2016, the Company concluded a major restructure of it secured borrowings with Glencore. The
restructuring resulted in certain changes to the loan terms of all facilities, including the extension of the
maturity dates, the introduction of a two-year interest free and debt amortisation free period (“payment
suspension”) and partial repayment of Facility A with the drawdown of a new facility (Facility F). A

summary of the restructured terms is shown in the Operations and Finance Review, Section 2.6.

Current

Finance leases (a)
Insurance funding
Glencore borrowings (b)
Total current borrowings

Non-current

Finance leases (a)

Glencore borrowings (b)

Total Non-current borrowings

Total Current and Non-current borrowings
Finance leases

Glencore borrowings

Total borrowings

(a) Finance leases have been used to fund light vehicles, and some fixed and mobile plant for the

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
329 427

- 80

- 22,230

329 22,737

575 1,280
112,449 90,635
113,025 91,915
904 1,707
112,449 112,865
113,353 114,652

crushing/screening circuit of the processing mill. Terms: Fixed monthly repayments in advance; Period three-five

years; Fixed interest rates ranging between 6.7%-7.1%; Nil residual.

{b) The Glencore borrowings are fully secured against all mine property, plant and equipment assets. The Fair value

of Glencore borrowings post the debt restructure has been recognised and recorded at period end.

Summary of Glencore Borrowings
Glencore Liability Balance

Facility A

Facility B

Facility C

Facility D

Facility E

Facility F

Glencore facilities drawn

Less Facility Establishment Costs
Current and Non-Current Glencore Liability Balance

Face Value of Glencore Borrowings (undiscounted value)
Facility A

Facility B

Facility C

Facility D

Facility E

Facility F

Face Value of Current and Non-Current Glencore Borrowings

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
9,087 23,055

51,442 55,774
29,913 32,592
5,329 5,825
16,678 -
112,449 117,246
- (4,381)
112,449 112,865
10,080 23,055
57,061 55,774
33,441 32,592
5,968 5,825
18,500 -
125,050 117,246
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14. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

(a) Movement in ordinary shares on Issue

2016 Date Number $'000

Opening balance 1-Jul-15 387,991,188 99,929
Nil - -

Closing balance 30-Jun-16 387,991,188 99,929

2015

Opening balance 1-Jul-14 328,322,918 85,361
Issue of shares (i) 3-Oct-14 5,590,027 2,000
Issue of shares (i) 3-Oct-14 9,905,000 3,226
Issue of shares (iii) 28-Jan-15 42,977,243 10,056
Less: Share issue costs (714)
Exercise of Performance Rights 2-Feb-15 500,000 -
Exercise of Performance Rights 28-Apr-15 696,000 -

Closing balance 30-Jun-15 387,991,188 99,929

Note: The Financial Report for the 12 months to 30 June 2015 showed 386,795,188 shares on issue. The
table above for 2015 has been corrected to display an additional 1,196,000 shares issued prior to 30 June
2015 from exercise of Performance Rights.

(i) During the period AMI reached an agreement with its primary underground contractor, Pybar Mining
Services Pty Ltd, to issue shares as part payment for mining services rendered to the Company during July
and August 2014.

(i} During the period AMI and Pacific Road agreed an amendment to the Share Subscription Agreement
(‘SSA’) announced to the ASX on 6 December 2013, and issued 2,778,050 shares at $0.2434 to raise
$676,177 being the remaining Phase 1 shares under the SSA and 7,126,950 shares at $0.3578 to raise
$2,549,880 being shares issued under Phase 2 of the amended SSA.

(iii) Fully underwritten 1 for 8 rights issue at $0.234 per share.

14.1. Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares which have no par value have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of
a winding up of the Parent, to participate in the proceeds from sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the
number of and amounts paid up on shares held. Ordinary shares entitle their holder to one vote, either in
person or proxy, at a meeting of the Company.

14.2. Capital management

The entity does not have a defined share buy-back plan or a dividend reinvestment plan. No dividends were
paid in the year ending 30 June 2016.
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15. RESERVES

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Share based Payments Reserve 4,034 3,061
(a) Movement in Reserves 2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Opening balance 3,061 2,898
Share based payment expense 973 163
Closing balance 4,034 3,061
(b) Movement in options on issue 2016 2015
Date Number Number
Opening balance 1-Jul-15 2,700,000 3,990,000
40 million option issue at $0.0125 (i)  28-Sep-15 40,000,000 -
10 million option issue at $0.0125 (i)  30-Nov-15 10,000,000 -
108 million option issue at $0.04 (iii)  1-Apr-16 108,000,000 -
Expiry of options - {2,700,000) (1,290,000)
Closing balance 30-Jun-16 158,000,000 2,700,000

(i)&(ii) Relate to share options issued to Pybar and Pacific Road as announced to ASX on 28 September
2015. The options expire on 28 September 2020 with a strike price of 1.25c/share. Calculation of the
option value and related expense is based on Black Scholes methodology using a risk free rate of 2.68%
and the following assumptions:

(i) Pacific Road: 40 million options - grant date of 28 September 2015, share price at grant date of
1.3c/share, volatility of 107 %, fair value per option 1.02c/share

(ii) Pybar: 10 million options - grant date of 30 November 2015, share price at grant date of
4.46c¢/share, volatility of 111%, fair value per option 4.46¢/share

(iii) Relates to share options granted to Glencore on 1 April 2016. These options can only be exercised
by Glencore if the Company elects to convert any of Facility A into shares prior to maturity of Facility A
in September 2020, as per the Convertible Note Deed Poll. Glencore may exercise any options within
a 24 month period after the date Facility A is converted in part or full. The valuation was derived from
a share price at grant date of 7.3c/share, volatility of 90%, and the application of modifying factors to
estimate a fair value per option at grant date of 0.056¢/share.
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(c) Movement in Performance Rights on

Issue 2016 2015
Date Number Number

Opening balance 1-Jul-15 1,132,000 1,354,000
Grant of performance rights - - 1,730,000
Exercise of performance rights - - (1,196,000)
Expiry of performance rights - (750,000) (756,000)
Closing balance 30-Jun-16 382,000 1,132,000

(i) The Company Performance Right Plan imposes various restrictions on the sale of the shares upon the
exercise of performance rights.

(d) Total Movement in Options & Rights 2016 2015

Number Number
Opening balance 3,832,000 5,344,000
Net movement in options 155,300,000 (1,290,000)
Net movement in performance rights (750,000) {(222,000)
Closing balance 158,382,000 3,832,000

Note: The Financial Report for the 12 months to 30 June 2015 showed an opening balance for the 2015
year of 5,560,000 options and performance rights on issue. The tables above for 2016 have been
corrected to display an opening balance of 5,344,000. The correction relates to 216,000 performance
rights which expired in the year prior to 30 June 2015.

Note: The Financial Report for the 12 months to 30 June 2015 showed a closing balance for the 2015
year of 4,212,000 options and performance rights on issue. The tables above for 2016 have been
corrected to display a closing balance of 3,832,000. The correction relates to a correction in the
opening balance, referred to above, and the inclusion of an additional 164,000 performance rights which
expired in the year to 30 June 2015.

16. RETAINED LOSSES

Movements in retained losses were as follows: 2016 2015

$'000 $'000

Opening balance (138,753) (20,595)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to members of Aurelia Metals Limited 10,943 (118,158)

Closing balance (127,810) (138,753)
53
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17. CASHFLOW STATEMENT
2016 2015

$'000 $'000
(a) Reconciliation of the Profit/(Loss) after tax to the net
cash flows used in operating activities
Net Profit/(Loss) after tax 10,943 (118,158)
Adjustments for:
Share based payments 973 163
{Gain)/Loss on debt restructure (10,203) -
Exploration and evaluation assets written off 174 3,347
Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets - 17,884
Impairment of producing mine assets - 75,031
Depreciation and amortisation 23,669 6,659
(Gain)/Loss on revaluation of investments (205) 287
{Gain)/Loss on revaluation of commodity derivatives 92 2,261
{Gain)/Loss on scrapping of plant and equipment 354 (20)
Interest and amortisation of borrowing costs 5,292 2,656
GST not included in net loss - 4,278
Changes in assets and liabilities: - -
(Increase)/decrease in receivables 2,785 (5,420)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments (213) (28)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (8,559) 7329
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 433 476
Movement in inventory (2,170) 94
Net cash flow from operating activities 23,365 (3,160)
(b) Reconciliation of cash
Cash at bank and in hand 18,112 1,828
Short term deposits 3,483 3,020
Total cash 21,595 4,848

The above Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Of the cash at bank held at 30 June 2016, $12.840 million (2015: $1.259 million) is held within Hera Resources
Limited and subject to existing loan agreements is restricted for use by Hera Resources.

Of the $3.483 million short term deposits held at 30 June 2016 (2015: $3.020 million), $3.483 million (2015:
$3.02 million) has been pledged as security, and cannot currently be withdrawn.
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18. EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

18.1. Operating lease commitments

The Group has entered into commercial leases on certain services and items of plant and machinery. These

leases have an average life of between three and five years with no renewal option included in the
contracts. There are no restrictions placed upon the Group by entering into these leases.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June 2016 are as follows:

2016 2015

$'000 $'000

Within one year 1,465 2,057
Between one and five years 1,403 2,192
More than five years - -
Closing balance 2,868 4,249

18.2. Finance lease and hire purchase commitments

The Group has finance leases and hire purchase contracts for various items of plant and machinery.

Future minimum rentals payable under finance leases and hire purchase contracts together with the
present value (PV) of the net minimum lease payments are as follows:

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Minimum PV of Minimum PV of
payments payments payments payments
Within one year 380 329 531 427
Between one and five years 614 575 1,408 1,280
More than five years - - - -
Total Payments 994 904 1,939 1,707
Less: Finance charges (90) (233)
PV of lease payments 904 904 1,707 1,707

18.3. Commitments

At 30 June 2016, the Group had commitments of $2,821,227 (2015: $4,326,113), including $1,393,583
relating to annual exploration/mining lease minimum annual expenditures (2015:$1,406,000)

19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The key events after the balance date affecting the Company were:

e 12 July 2016: Implementation of a forward gold sales program of approximately 11,200 ounces for
the next 6 months at a price of approximately A$1,785 per oz.

e 29 July 2016: Retirement of Rimas Kairaitis as Chief Executive Officer effective 31 August 2016. Jim
Simpson was appointed Managing Director on 1 August 2016 and Chief Executive Officer on 1
September 2016. The Board's intention is to grant, subject to shareholder approval if required, 4.5
million performance rights to Mr Simpson which will vest upon the achievement of various key
operational performance hurdles, and provide the ability to acquire shares at nil cost.
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20. PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Profit/(Loss) used in calculating basic and dilutive EPS 10,943 (118,158)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period used in the calculation of basic EPS 387,991,188 358,286,457
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period used in the calculation of diluted EPS 452,835,101 362,829,624
Basis Profit/(Loss) per share (cents per share) 2.82 (33.0)
Diluted Profit/(Loss) per share (cents per share) 2.42 (33.0)
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The Auditor of Aurelia Metals Limited is Ernst & Young.
2016 2015
Audit Services $'000 $'000
Audit and Review of Financial Statements 140 122
Non-Audit Services
Tax compliance services 32 -
Total Audit and Non-Audit Services 172 122

There were no other services provided by Ernst & Young other than as disclosed above.

22. HERA PROJECT DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

On 18 June 2009, the Company reached agreement to purchase a 100% interest in the Hera Project and an
80% interest in the adjacent Nymagee Joint Venture from CBH Resources Limited (CBH). The total cost of
the acquisition was an initial cash purchase price of $12,000,000 and a 5% gold royalty on gravity gold dore
production from the Hera deposit, capped at 250,000 ounces gold. The royalty was commercially
negotiated post acquisition down to 4.5%.

The Consolidated Entity has recorded deferred consideration of $10,560,066 ($7,683,245 at 30 June 2015)
representing the net present value of projected royalty payments due under the revised terms of the
acquisition, calculated based on information available as at 30 June 2016. The deferred consideration is
revalued at each reporting date through the carrying value of the asset in accordance with the transitional
requirements of AASB 3 Business combinations.

23.  OPERATING SEGMENTS

23.1. Identification of reportable segments

The Consolidated Entity has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are
reviewed and used by the Managing Director and the Board of Directors (the chief operating decision
makers) in assessing performance and in determining the allocation of resources.

The Consolidated Entity operates entirely in the industry of exploration for and development of minerals in
Australia. The operating segments are identified by management based on the size of the exploration
tenement. The reportable segments are split between the Hera — Nymagee project, being the most
significant current project of the Company, and all other tenements. Financial information about each of
these segments is reported to the Managing Director and Board of Directors on a monthly basis.

Corporate office activities are not allocated to operating segments and form part of the reconciliation to net
loss after tax.
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23.2.

Accounting policies and inter-segment transactions

The accounting policies used by the Company in reporting segments are the same as those contained in
note 2A to the accounts. The following items are not allocated to operating segments, as they are not
considered part of the core operations of any segment:

Interest and other income
Share based payment expense

Gain/{Loss) recorded on the sale of financial assets, investment revaluations, debt restructuring,

foreign exchange and commodity derivative transactions.

23.3. Profit/(Loss) of reportable segments
Hera- Other
Nymagee exploration

project projects Corporate Total

$000's $000's $000's $000's
Year ended 30 June 2016
Sales 91,945 - - 91,945
Site EBITDA 36,599 - (4,691) 31,908
Depreciation and amortisation (23,425) - (244) (23,669)
Exploration costs written off (109) (64) - (174)
Segment Profit/(Loss) after tax 13,064 (64) (4,935) 8,065
Reconciliation of Profit/(Loss) before income tax expense
Interest and other income 284
Gain/(Loss) on debt restructure 10,203
Gain/(Loss) on foreign exchange, (92)
hedging and derivatives
Gain/(Loss) on revaluation of
investments 205
Interest, finance and other charges (6,749)
Share based expenses (973)
Profit/(Loss) before Income Tax 10,943

Expense

AURELIA METALS LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2016



aurelia

METALS Ltd.
Hera- Other
Nymagee exploration
project projects Corporate Total
$000's $000's $000's $000's
Year ended 30 June 2015
Sales 13,220 - - 13,220
Site EBITDA (6,565) - (4,357) (10,923)
Depreciation and amortisation (6,453) - (206) (6,659)
Impairment of mine properties (75,031) - (75,031)
Impairment of exploration assets (17,884) - (17,884)
Exploration costs written off - (3,347) - (3,347)
Segment Profit/(Loss) after tax (105,934) (3,347) (4,564) (113,845)
Reconciliation of Profit/(Loss) before income tax expense
Interest and other income 304
Gain/(Loss) on debt restructure -
Gain/(Loss) on foreign exchange, (1,675)
hedging and derivatives '
Qain/(Loss) on revaluation of (287)
Investments
Interest, finance and other charges (2,656)
Profit/(Loss) before Income Tax (118,158)
Expense
23.4. Asset and Liability position of reportable segments
Hera- Other
Nymagee exploration
project projects Corporate Total
$000's $000's $000's $000's
Segment assets at 30 June 2016
Cash and cash equivalents 12,840 - 8,755 21,595
Trade and other receivables 2,724 - 676 3,400
Inventories and materials on hand 5,445 - - 5,445
Prepayments 163 - 195 358
Property, plant and equipment 50,224 - 284 50,508
Mine properties 30,006 - - 30,006
Financial assets - - 477 477
Exploration an and evaluation assets 19 87 - 106
Total assets at 30 June 2016 101,420 87 10,387 111,895
Segment liabilities at 30 June 2016
Trade and other payables 5,478 - 312 5,791
Deferred acquisition costs - current 1,971 - - 1,971
Deferred acquisition costs - non - current 8,589 - - 8,589
Hera Rehabilitation provision 2,384 - - 2,384
Provisions 3,318 - 335 3,653
Borrowings 96,675 - 16,678 113,353
Total liabilities at 30 June 2016 118,416 - 17,326 135,742
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Segment assets at 30 June 2015
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables
Inventories and materials on hand
Prepayments

Property, plant and equipment

Mine properties

Financial assets

Exploration an and evaluation assets
Total assets at 30 June 2015

Segment liabilities at 30 June 2015
Trade and other payables
Deferred acquisition costs - current

Deferred acquisition costs - non - current

Hera Rehabilitation provision
Provisions

Borrowings

Total liabilities at 30 June 2015

Hera- Other

Nymagee exploration
project projects Corporate Total
$000's $000's $000's $000's
1,259 - 3,589 4,848
5,310 - 875 6,185
2,693 - - 2,693
45 - 100 145
56,956 - 503 57,459
33,307 - - 33,307
- - 273 273
43 73 - 116
99,612 73 5,340 105,025
16,371 - 24 16,395
1,382 - - 1,382
6,301 - - 6,301
1,516 - - 1,516
134 - 409 543
114,651 - - 114,651
140,355 - 433 140,789

(1) Geographic and revenue diversity information

During the period the $75.526 million (2015: $6.232 million) of gold and silver revenue was derived
from customers in Australia and base metal revenue of $16.418 million (2015: $6.988 million) was

derived from countries outside of Australia.
During the period approximately 18% of revenue relied on the sale and purchase of base metal

concentrate from Glencore under a base metal offtake agreement.

Information relating to the parent entity of the Group, Aurelia Metals Limited:

Current assets

Non-current assets

Total assets at 30 June 2016
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net (liabilities)/assets

Issued capital

Reserves

Accumulated losses

Total shareholders’ equity
Profit/(Loss) for the year
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2016 2015
$000's $000's
9,626 4,564
761 777
10,387 5,341
574 427
16,751 39
17,325 466
(6,938) 4,875
99,929 99,929
4,034 3,061
(110,901) (98,115)
(6,938) 4,875
(4,137) (4,411)
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Commitments

Commitments contracted for at reporting date but not recognised as liabilities are as follows:
Parent Parent
2016 2015
$000's $000's
Within one year 77 203
After one year but not longer than five years - 76
77 279

Commitments include lease of head office premises, lease of office equipment, and
telecommunications services contract.

25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's management of financial risk aims to ensure cash flows are sufficient to:

e  Withstand significant changes in cash flow at risk scenarios and still meet all financial
commitments as and when they fall due; and
e Maintain the capacity to fund project development, exploration and acquisition strategies.

The Group continually monitors and tests its forecast financial position against these criteria. The key
financial risk exposures are liquidity risk, credit risk, and market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
commodity price risk and interest rate risk).

The Directors are responsible for monitoring and managing financial risk exposures of the Group. The
Group’s financial instruments consist mainly of borrowings, deposits with banks, derivatives, payables and
receivables. The Group holds the following financial instruments:

Financial Assets 2016 2015

$'000 $'000
Cash at bank 18,109 1,828
Term deposits 3,486 3,020
Receivables 3,400 6,185
Other financial assets 477 273
Balance at year end 25,472 11,305

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables 5,791 16,395

Borrowings 113,353 114,652

Deferred acquisition royalty 10,560 7,683

Closing balance 129,704 138,730
25.1. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the group might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or
otherwise meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities. The Company has significant short and long
term financial obligations. The primary risk factor relates to the Company’s ability to reorganise its debts
when required to manage any foreseen or unforeseen liquidity events.

The Company’s operation remains in a state of ramp-up after commencement of production in 2015.
Liquidity risk is managed through maximising operational cash flow, negotiation of its current debt
commitments and a reliance on equity funding from its shareholders or other market participants.
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25.2. Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below shows the Group’s financial arrangements at 30 June 2016 in their relevant contractual
maturity groupings. The contractual maturity of debt for 2015 exclude $4.381 million of facility
establishment costs.

Payables: Trade and other payables are expected to be settled within 12 months.

Maturity Profile of financial liabilities

Contracted Carrying
cash flow of value of
2016 <1Yr 1-2Yrs 2-3Yrs 3-4Yrs 4-5Yrs liability liability
$'000 $'000  $'000  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Facility A - 672 1,671 3,165 4,572 10,080 9,087
Facility B - 3,804 9,461 17,917 25,879 57,061 51,442
Facility C - 2,229 5,545 10,500 15,167 33,441 29,913
Facility E - 918 5,050 - - 5,968 5,329
Facility F - 1233 3,067 5809 8,390 18,499 16,678
Sub-total Debt - 8,856 24,794 37,391 54,008 125,049 112,449
Equipment Loans 329 290 285 - - 904 904
Insurance Loan - - - - - - -
Total 329 9,146 25,079 37,3917 54,008 125,953 113,353
Contracted Carrying
cash flow of value of
2015 <1 Yr 1-2Yrs  2-3Yrs 3-4Yrs  4-5Yrs liability liability
$'000 $'000  $'000  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Facility A 3,264 4,853 14,937 - - 23,054 23,054
Facility B 7897  M741 36137 - - 55,775 55,775
Facility C 4,614 6,861 21,117 - - 32,592 32,592
Facility E 2,174 3,651 - - - 5,825 5,824
Sub-total Debt 17,949 27,106 72,191 - - 117,246 117,246
Equipment Loans 427 449 419 41 - 1,706 1,707
Insurance Loan 80 - - - - 80 80
Total 18,456 27,555 72,610 411 - 119,032 119,033
25.3. Credit Risk Exposures

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties failed to perform as contracted.
The credit risk on financial assets of the entity which have been recognised in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position is the carrying amount, net of any provision for doubtful debts. Credit risk is managed
through the maintenance of procedures which ensure, to the extent possible, that counterparties to
transactions are of sound creditworthiness. Such monitoring is used in assessing receivables for impairment.
No receivables are considered past due or impaired.

AURELIA METALS LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2016



aurelia

METALS Ltd.

25.4. Market Risk Exposures
a) Foreign Currency Risk

The Group undertakes transactions impacted by foreign currencies; hence exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise. Although the majority of the Group costs, including development expenditure, are in
Australian dollars many of these costs are affected either directly or indirectly by movements in exchange
rates. Revenue during the year from the sale of commodities is largely affected by movements in the
USD:AUD exchange rate.

Currently the Group does not hedge against this risk. The group considers the effects of foreign currency
risk on its financial position and financial performance and assesses its option to hedge based on current
economic conditions and available market data.

The majority of sales, 100% in the case of gold and 75% to 80% in the case of base metals, are immediately
converted to Australian dollars at the time of sale. The foreign currency exposure to revenue not converted
at time of sale in the period to a 5% change in US$ exchange rate was an approximately $187,939
increase/decrease in revenue.

b) Commodity Price Risk

The Group's revenue is exposed to commadity price fluctuations, particularly gold, lead and zinc prices.

Price risk relates to the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of commaodity sales will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices largely due to supply and demand factors for commodities. The Group is
exposed to commodity price risk due to the sale of gold, lead, zinc and copper on physical prices determined
by the market at the time of sale.

Gold price risk is managed, from time to time and as required and deemed appropriate by the Board, with
the use of hedging strategies through the purchase of put options or forward sale contracts. These
contracts can establish a minimum commaodity price denominated in either US$ or AS over part of the
group’s future metal production.

Gold put options, gold forward sales and base metal quotational period hedging was not utilised during the
year. At balance date, there are no hedging products in existence.

During the financial year, gold sales were 46,882 ounces. The effect on the income statement with an
AS$50/0z increase/decrease in gold price would have been an increase/decrease in gold revenue of $2.3
million.

During the financial year, the company sold bulk concentrate containing payable lead of 6,220 tonnes and
payable zinc of 4,402 tonnes. An increase/decrease of US$50/t in the price of lead and zinc, would
increase/decrease revenue by $440,821.

c) Interest Rate Risk

Exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and liabilities recognised at reporting date whereby a
future change in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair value of fixed rate financial
instruments. The group has long term financial liabilities on which it pays interest and also holds cash and
short term deposits on which it receives interest.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from variable interest rates on interest bearing liabilities. Asat 30 June
2016, the Group held variable interest rate debt with a face value of $125.050 million. Interest ceased
accruing on this loan on 23 November 2015 and remains in a payment suspension until 31 March 2018. An
increase/decrease in the variable interest rates of 0.25% during the year would have resulted in a $120,318
increase/decrease in interest expense relating to interest bearing liabilities.

The Group has not entered in any hedging activities to cover interest rate risk. The Group continually
analyses its exposure to interest rate risk. Consideration is given to alternative financing options, potential
renewal of existing positions, alternative investments and the mix of fixed and variable interest rates.
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25.5. Capital risk management

The Group's capital structure consists of borrowings and equity. The capital management strategy is to
maximise shareholder value through having an appropriate balance of debt and equity in recognition of the
maturity and operational risk of the business. The current debt position of the Company is high in absolute
and relative terms. The Group has sought to reduce the financial risk of the debt amounts by ensuring a
significant part of the debt be convertible to equity, and by having, when commercially possible, commodity
price protection.

The Group continues to monitor the capital of Aurelia by assessing the financial risks and adjusting the
capital structure in response to changes in the risks. The Group is continually evaluating financing and
capital raising opportunities.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Aurelia’s capital structure consists of:

Capital Structure 2016 2015

$'000 $'000
Total Borrowings 113,353 114,652
Cash and cash equivalents 21,595 4,848
Net Borrowings 91,758 109,804
Equity (23,847) (35,764)
Total Capital (Net Borrowings and equity) 67,911 74,040
Gearing (Net Borrowings/Net Borrowings and equity) 135% 148%

Gearing reduced over the year but is noted to be excessive. Gearing levels are mitigated by the suspension
of all debt obligations until 31 March 2018. The aim is to reduce gearing to manageable levels through the
repayment of outstanding debt and/or debt conversion into equity, if and when commercially rational and
to the extent it is possible (see Section 2.6 (f) of the Operations and Financial Review: Conversion Rights).

25.6. Fair Value

The Directors consider the carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial
statements approximate their fair values.

At balance date, the Company has recognised the fair value of Glencore borrowings at $112.449 million. It
is noted that there is significant judgement in determining the fair value of borrowings due to the applicable
interest rate a market participant might expect to receive on the present borrowings relative to the actual
interest rate obtained by the Company at inception of the borrowings. Given this uncertainty and the lack
of reliable inputs to arrive at an alternate interest rate, the rate applicable to the loans is deemed to be the
most reasonable assessment of a market interest rate.

The fair value is estimated based on parameters such as interest rates, creditworthiness and the risk
characteristics of the financing.
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a) Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities. The
following financial instruments are carried at fair value in the statement of financial position, and measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

2016 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets $'000 $'000 $'000

Shares in AusTin Mining 477 - -
Liabilities

Deferred Acquisition Costs - - 10,560

Glencore Borrowings - - 112,449

2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets $'000 $'000 $'000

Shares in AusTin Mining 273 - -
Liabilities

Deferred Acquisition Costs - - 7,683

During the current reporting period, there were no transfers between level 1and level 2 fair value
measurements. The addition of Glencore Borrowings to Level 3 occurred during the year.

The techniques and inputs used to value the financial assets and liabilities are as follows:

e Shares - market value of shares listed on the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX).

e  Options - revalued each period using a Black-Scholes methodology, with revaluation adjustments
appearing as gains/(losses) in the statement of comprehensive income. Inputs include: current
share price, strike price, years to maturity, risk-free rate and volatility.

e Deferred acquisition costs - revalued each period to fair value by using the discounted cash flow
methodology. Inputsinclude forecast gravity gold production applicable to the royalty of 138,000
ounces. Future royalty revenue is estimated using an assumed future average gold price of
A$1690/0z. The discount rate used was the five year government bond rate of 1.56%.

e  Glencore borrowings — revalued each period to fair value by using the discounted cash flow
methodology. Inputs include the agreed payment suspense period, repayment schedule and
interest payment schedule applicable to each of the restructured loans (see Note 13 and
Operations and Finance Review for further details). The discount rate used to fair value the cash
flows was the applicable interest rate of each loan at balance date, which ranged from 6.2% to
6.8%.
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26.  SHARE BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Recognised share based payments expenses for employee services received in the reporting period is shown
in the table below.

Share based payments 2016 2015

$'000 $'000

Expense from share based payments to employees 59 163

Expense from share based payments to third parties 914 -

Total 973 163
26.1. Type of share based payment plan

a) Employee Share Option Plan and Performance Rights Plan

The Company has established an Employee Share Option Plan (ESOP) and a Performance Rights Plan, as
detailed in the Remuneration Report to these Financial Statements. The objective of these is to assist in the
recruitment, reward, retention and motivation of employees of Aurelia Metals. An individual may receive
the options or nominate a relative or associate to receive the options. The plans are open to Directors and
eligible employees of Aurelia Metals.

b) Summary of movements of Options on issue

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise price (*“WEAP") of, and
movements in, share options during the year.

Options on Issue 30 June 2016 30 June 2015

Number WAEP (c) Number WAEP (c)
Opening balance issued 2,700,000 39.07 3,990,000 40.56
Granted during the year 158,000,000 3.13 - -
Exercised during the year - - - -
Expired during the year (2,700,000) 39.07 (1,290,000) 43.68
Closing balance issued 158,000,000 3.13 2,700,000 39.07
Exercisable at 30 June 50,000,000 1.25 2,700,000 39.07

(1) The weighted average remaining contractual life of Options at balance date was 4.25 years (2015:
0.42 years) with exercise prices ranging from 1.25 c to 4c/share.

(2) Closing balance detail: Number WAEP (c)
40,000,000 1.25 Pacific Road Options
10,000,000 1.25 Pybar Options
108,000,000 4.00 Glencore Options
158,000,000 3.13
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¢) Summary of movements of Performance Rights on issue

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise price (“WEAP") of, and
movements in, Performance Rights during the year. All Performance Rights have a zero weighted average
exercise price.

Performance Rights on

Issue 30 June 2016 30 June 2015

Number WAEP (c) Number WAEP (c)
Opening balance issued 1,132,000 - 1,354,000 -
Granted during the year - - 1,730,000 -
Exercised during the year - - (1,196,000) -
Lapsed during the year (750,000) - {(756,000) -
Closing balance issued 382,000 - 1,132,000 -
Exercisable at 30 June 182,000 - 182,000 -

(1) The 750,000 performance rights expiring during the year relate to the expiry of 570,000 March 12
Performance Rights and 180,000 2015 Class C Performance Rights.

{a) March 12 Performance Rights: 570,000 Performance Rights were tested on 15 March 2016. Asa
consequence of the price hurdle, all performance rights lapsed and expired.

{b) 2015 Class C Performance Rights: 180,000 2015 Class C Performance Rights lapsed due to the
termination of employment. The testing date for these rights is 9 February 2018.

(2) Closing balance is comprised of:

2013 Class A Perf. Rights 70,000 Vested Exercisable

2013 Class B Perf. Rights 64,000 Vested Exercisable

2015 Class D Perf. Rights 48,000 Vested Exercisable

2015 Class C Perf. Rights 200,000 Un-vested Not Exercisable
382,000

d) Fair Value Determination
There were no Options or Performance Rights granted during the period that required fair value
determination.

27.  CONTIGENT LIABILITIES

There are no contingent liabilities that require disclosure.

28. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or declared by the Company in the period since the end of the previous financial year,
and up to the date of this report. The Directors do not recommend that any amount be paid by way of
dividend for the financial year ended 30 June 2016. The balance of the Company’s franking account is nil
(2015: Nil).
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29.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of Key Management Personnel compensation during the year is contained in the table below.

KMP Compensation 2016 2015

$'000 $'000
Short-term employee benefits 1,122 1,985
Post-employment benefits 90 141
Share based payments 6 155
Total 1,218 2,282

Detailed remuneration disclosures are contained in the Remuneration Report of these Financial
Statements.

a) Transactions with other related parties

Directors fees in the amount of $50,000 were paid to Pacific Road Capital Management Pty Ltd, a company
of which Paul Espie is a Director, for services provided during the period (2015:$50,000).

Directors fees in the amount of $28,329 were paid to Kilorin Pty Ltd, a company of which Mike Menzies is a
Director, for services provided during the period (2015:Nil).

Directors fees in the amount of $25,846 were paid to Glencore International AG, a company of which Rune
Symann is an Executive, for services provided during the period (2015:Nil).

Fees in the amount of $77,976 were paid to Pacific Road Capital Management Pty Ltd, a company of which
Paul Espie is a Director, for reimbursement of legal fees associated with corporate funding activity
(2015:Nil).

During the year, Aurelia issued 40 million options, with an expiry date of 28 September 2020 and a strike
price of 1.25c/share, to Pacific Road Capital Management, a company of which Paul Espie is a Director, in
respect to the funding term sheet announced on 9 September 2015.
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of Aurelia Metals Limited, we state that:
In the opinion of the Directors:

The financial statements and notes of the consolidated entity are in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:

e  Giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of
its performance for the year ended on that date; and

e  Complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001;

The Financial Statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in Note 2A (b); and there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay
its debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in
accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the Financial Year Ending 30 June 2016.

On behalf of the Board

ik,

Anthony Wehby
Non-Executive Chairman

16 September 2016
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Aurelia Metals Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Aurelia Metals Limited, which comprises the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and the directors' declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the
company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for
such internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 2, the directors also
state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the
financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001. We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, a
copy of which is included in the directors' report.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Opinion
In our opinion:

a. the financial report of Aurelia Metals Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

i giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June 2016
and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

i complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;
and

b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed
in Note 2.

Report on the remuneration report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the directors' report for the year ended 30 June
2016. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Aurelia Metals Limited for the year ended 30 June 2016,
complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Ryan Fisk

Partner

Sydney

16 September 2016

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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ADDITIONAL ASX INFORMATION

Shareholder Information
Additional Information required by the Australia Stock Exchange Limited Listing Rules and not disclosed
elsewhere in this report.

This additional information was applicable as at 29 September 2016.

Distribution of Security Holders
Analysis of numbers of listed equity security holders by size of holding

1-1,000 201
1,001 - 5,000 501
5,001 - 10,000 439
10,001 - 100,000 1,242
100,007 and above 339
Total on Register 2,722

There are 515 holders of less than a marketable parcel of shares.

Top 20 Shareholders

" HOLDER NAME "NUMBER HELD  PERCENTAGE

1 PACIFIC ROAD CAPITAL 93,414,913 24.08%
2 YUNNAN TIN AUSTRALIA 30,630,504 7.89%
3 PYBAR HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED 19,438,850 5.01%
4 PERSHING AUSTRALIA NOMINEES 16,560,316 4.27%
5 HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES 13,705,444 3.53%
6 YUNNAN TIN (YTC) HOLDINGS PTY 12,141,905 3.13%
7 GLENCORE AUSTRALIA HOLDINGS 9,390,000 2.42%
8 MR DONALD JEFFREY SMITH & 7,000,000 1.80%
9 WHITEHALL SECURITIES PTY LTD 6,565,969 1.69%
10 LUJETA PTY LTD 6,000,000 1.55%
" ] P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA 5,037,713 1.30%
12 SMIFF PTY LTD 4,208,544 1.08%
13 BNP PARIBAS NOMS (NZ) LTD 3,371,306 0.87%
14 SOUTHERN CROSS EXPLORATION NL 3,000,000 0.77%
15 MR BRIAN HENRY MCCUBBING & 2,700,000 0.70%
16 B&M JACKSON PTY LTD 2,541,045 0.65%
17 JORDAN INVESTMENT GROUP PTY 2,029,363 0.52%
18 B & R JAMES INVESTMENTS 2,000,000 0.52%
19 MISS BEE Al GOH 1,913,852 0.49%
20 MR STEPHEN CANSDELL HIRST 1,688,499 0.44%
TOP 20 TOTAL 243,338,223 62.72%
OTHER SHAREHOLDERS 144,652,965 37.28%
TOTAL ON ISSUE 387,991,188 100.00%
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Statement of Restricted Securities
There are no Restricted Securities.

Substantial Shareholders

Substantial Shareholders of the Company are as follows;

Pacific Road Capital Management Pty Ltd ATF the YTC Managed Investment Trust
Glencore Australia Holdings Pty Ltd*
Yunnan Tin Aust TDK Resources Pty Ltd**

* The Holder is a member of the Glencore International Group
**The Holder is a wholly owned subsidiary of Yunnan Tin Company Group Limited

The number of securities disclosed above is as per substantial notices given to the Company. Substantial

aurelia

93,414,913
25,950,316
24,237,433

METALS Ltd.

shareholder interests in securities may change without requiring the Holder to provide notice of the change,
therefore resulting in a difference between their disclosure and other disclosures in this report.

Unquoted Securities

Holder Class : Expiry Date Number
Perform Rights (ClassA)  Nil 15/3/2015 70,000
Perform Rights (ClassB)  Nil 18/3/2016 64,000
Perform Rights (ClassC)  Nil 9/02/2022 200,000
Perform Rights (ClassD)  Nil 9/02/2022 48,000
Options $0.0125 28/09/2022 50,000,000
Expiring 24 Months after the
Options $0.04 conversion of the Glencore 108,000.000

Facility A convertible notes

Total Unlisted Securities on Issue

158,382.000

Voting Rights

The Voting Right attached to each class of equity security are as follows;

Ordinary Shares

Each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called otherwise each member present at a meeting
or by proxy has one vote on a show of hands.

Options & Performance Rights
These securities have no voting rights.
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SCHEDULE OF TENEMENT INTERESTS

Tenement Project Name

MLy ymagee
Mine
MLgo  ymagee
Mine
MLs295 ~ ymagee
Mine
MLsg2g  ymagee
Mine
pLLg47  ymagee
Mine
EL4232 Nymagee
Elassg ~|ymagee
Mine
ML1686 Hera Mine
EL6162 Hera
EL6226 Kadungle
EL6258 Doradilla
EL6699  Tallebung
EL7447 Box Creek
EL7524 Barrow
EL7529 Lyell
MLAS526 Hera North

Location

Nymagee NSW

Nymagee NSW

Nymagee NSW

Nymagee NSW

Nymagee NSW

Nymagee NSW

Nymagee NSW

Nymagee NSW

Nymagee NSW

70km north-west of
Parkes, central-west
NSW

50km southeast of
Bourke, north-west
NSW
70km north-west of
Condobolin, central-
west NSW

Nymagee NSW

20km west of
Nymagee; western
NSW
20km west of
Nymagee; western
NSW

Nymagee NSW

Holder

Nymagee Resources
Pty Ltd

Nymagee Resources
Pty Ltd

Nymagee Resources
Pty Ltd

Nymagee Resources
Pty Ltd

Nymagee Resources
Pty Ltd

Nymagee Resources
Pty Ltd

Nymagee Resources
Pty Ltd

Hera Resources Pty Ltd

Hera Resources Pty Ltd

Defiance Resources Pty
Ltd

Stannum Pty Ltd

Stannum Pty Ltd

Defiance Resources Pty
Ltd

Defiance Resources Pty
Ltd

Defiance Resources Pty
Ltd

Hera Resources Pty Ltd

Size
(km2)

0.04867

0.3391

0.003339

0.01538

0.1227

14.5

11.6

13.079

130

435

110.2

725

145

60.9

8.7

0.61

Expiry Date

31/12/2021

31/12/2021

31/12/2021

31/12/2021

31/12/2021

16/03/2017

16/09/2017

16/05/2034

25/11/2018

5/04/2018

20/06/2017

9/01/2017

2/02/2017

3/05/2017

3/05/2017

Notes

Under Farm-In
Agreement with
Emmerson
Resources

Application pending
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